
 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

 

    

  

 

                                                                                                                                                                                          
  

AGENDA 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Regular Board Meeting 

 Tuesday, November 1, 2016 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 

 
   9:00 AM Call to Order  

   Approval of Minutes 

 October 25, 2016 Board Meeting 

 

   Review Agenda 

 

Consent Agenda  

       

Clerk 

a. Agreement w/M Dolven for Family Law Facilitator Services   

Commissioners 

b. Reappointment of S LePage to Mid-Columbia Libraries Board of Trustees  

District Court 

c. Contract w/Washington Collectors for Collection Services  

Facilities 

d. Payment Authorization to Kone, Inc for Elevator Services  

e. Contract w/Fire Systems West, Inc. for Fire Alarm Maintenance & Testing  

Information Technology 

f. Purchase of Additional Workstations & Monitors from Dell Premier for Public Works  

Parks 

g. Public Access Easement Near Candy Mountain  

Personnel 

h. Salary Request Statement  

Public Works 

i. Agreement w/Columbia Irrigation District for Purchase of Raw Material from Owens Quarry   

j. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0101-101, Dept. 500   

Sheriff 

k. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120  

Superior Court 

l. Agreement w/A Armijo for Interpreting Services 

m. Proclamation for National Adoption Day 

 

Public Hearing 

 

Capital Improvement Plan ~ P Schut 

   

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator             

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Text Box
To view items in details, please click on the highlighted area. 



Agenda - Board of County Commissioners 

November 1, 2016 

Page 2 

 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

Scheduled Business  

 

Tenant Improvements for Justice Center ~ D Waggoner  

 

Change Order #1 w/MG Wagner for Re-Roofing Project @ the Justice Center ~ D Waggoner  

 

Preliminary Plat – SUB 2016-005 ~ C Posey 

 

Contract for Consultation of the Behavioral Health System ~ K Sullivan 

 

Noxious Weed Budget Assessment ~ Vic Reeves 

 

Jail Contract w/Cities Discussion ~ L Smith-Kelty  

 

2017-2018 Budget Discussions ~ D Sparks 

 

Unscheduled Visitors 

   Other Business   
   

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight



 - 1 - 

MINUTES 

 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

Regular Board Meeting 

Tuesday, October 25, 2016, 9:00 a.m. 

Commissioners’ Conference Room  

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 

 

Present: Chairman Shon Small 

  Commissioner Jerome Delvin 

  Commissioner James Beaver 

  County Administrator David Sparks   

  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 

 

Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 

Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; County 

Engineer Matt Rasmussen; Assistant County Engineer Robert Blain; Planning Manager Mike 

Shuttleworth; DPA Ryan Brown; Clerk Josie Delvin; District Court Administrator Jacki Lahtinen; 

Assessor Bill Spencer; Treasurer Duane Davidson; Deputy Treasurer Erhiza Rivera; Facilities 

Manager Dan Waggoner; Clark Posey, Planning; Financial Analyst Paul Schut; IT Manager Teri 

Holmes; Sheriff Steve Keane; Undersheriff Jerry Hatcher; Auditor Brenda Chilton.   

 

Approval of Minutes 

 

The Minutes of October 18, 2016 were approved.   

 

Consent Agenda 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “r”.   

Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the following: 

 

Auditor  
a. Surplus of Personal Property  

District Court  
b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 111  

Facilities  
c. Contract w/Booth & Sons Construction, Inc. for Tenant Improvements for WSU  

Extension  

d. Contract w/SimplexGrinnell, LP for Fire Sprinkler Testing & Maintenance  

Fairgrounds  
e. Contract w/Frontier Fence, Inc. for Fence Repair  

Human Services  
f. Amended Agreement #3 w/Domestic Violence Services Through Homeless Grant  

g. Records Transfer Agreement w/Greater Columbia Behavioral Health  



 - 2 - 

h. Amended Agreement E w/St Dept of Commerce, Community Services & Housing for 

Emergency Solutions Grant  

Juvenile  
i. Agreement w/Reuters-West Publishing Corporation for Law Books  

Prosecuting Attorney  
j. Grievance Arbitration Settlement Agreement & Release  

Public Works  
k. Contract w/Granite Construction Co. for Meals Road Asphalt Repair Project  

l. Contract w/Premier Excavation for Victoria Avenue Storm Water Project  

m. Approval of Construction Plans of La Buena Vida Estates  

n. Memorandum Amendment #1 w/Weed District No. 1 for Noxious Weed Control  

Sheriff  
o. Business Consultant Agreement w/Randall Barnes  

p. Contract w/Cascade Engineering Services, Inc. for Diagnostics of Radar Devices  

Sustainable Development  
q. Participation Agreement w/Cities of Kennewick, Pasco, Richland & W Richland for 

Hanford Communities  

r. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0135-101, Dept. 000  

 

Pre-Budget Discussion 

 

Loretta Smith Kelty gave a Powerpoint presentation to discuss the following: 

 

2017-2018 Jail Cost Allocation Scenarios 

 

 Revenue Sharing  

o Billable Expenditures - $27.5 million 

o Benton County Percentage – 71.69% ($19,708,430) 

o Bed Day Rate - $86.58 

 No Revenue Sharing 

o Billable Expenditures - $35 million 

o Benton County Percentage – 78.52% ($27,650,081) 

 Benton County’s direct costs go up and cities go down 

o Bed Day Rate - $84.14 

 

Mr. Sparks said he asked the Sheriff’s office for information so they could determine if there was 

incremental cost savings by having more prisoners; maybe this was not the right model or not the 

right size.  However, the net effect of keeping the revenue was that Benton County’s direct costs 

went up.   

 

Commissioner Delvin discussed two options:  1) Use a 3-5 year average to come up with 

percentages and they would be billed monthly; or 2) the cities would buy a minimum amount of 

beds and if they went over, they would pay a bed day rate for going over. 

 

Commissioner Beaver said he was interested in getting away from the fluctuation in revenue and 

he liked the percentage formula so they could get to a point where minimum costs were covered.   



 - 3 - 

Chairman Small said he agreed that things had changed and costs had gone up and they needed to 

find a good system. 

 

The Board agreed to look at a percentage formula based on a 3-5 average and if they went over 

that percentage, then a bed day rate.   

 

Mr. Sparks discussed the proposed admin fee of 5% and said there was a study done at SECOMM 

that 7% was a good number so it depended on what was included.  He said the Undersheriff’s 

salary, time for public records requests and other ancillary programs were not currently included 

in the admin fee.  The Board agreed to review it. 

 

District Court – Filings v. Budgets  

 

Ms. Smith Kelty presented the figures and said it was the same scenario.  Mr. Sparks said the cities 

were using the Courts less and Benton County was left holding the difference.  Mr. Sparks said 

you could almost track the budget deficit with the LFO docket and Superior Court  

 

Ms. Smith Kelty recommended the Board amend the resolution adopting alternate dates for budget 

hearings to December 20 to adopt the budget.  Mr. Sparks said they were still $2.8 million from 

balancing; additionally, the Board still needed to make a decision on the levy rate since they could 

generate $600,000 over the biennium if they kept the levy rate the same.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the resolution amending the alternate dates 

for the budget hearings.  Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, the motion carried.   

 

Mr. Brown requested the Board add an executive session to discuss pending litigation. 

 

The Board agreed to move the Treasurer’s budget discussion to Wednesday at the Justice Center.   

 

The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 9:48 a.m.   

 

Executive Session – Pending Litigation 

 

The Board went into executive session at 9:48 a.m. to discuss pending litigation with DPA Ryan 

Brown until 10:00 a.m.  Also present were David Sparks, Loretta Smith Kelty and Cami 

McKenzie.  The Board came out at 9:54 a.m. No decisions were made in executive session.   

 

Account Payables 

 

Check Date: 10/21/2016 

 

Warrant #: 147097-147231 

Total all funds: $712,781.48 

 

Transfer #: 10211601-10211608 

Total all funds: $1,071,372.76 



 - 4 - 

 

Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 

 

Resolutions 

 

2016-824: Surplus of Personal Property  

2016-825: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 111  

2016-826: Contract w/Booth & Sons Construction, Inc. for Tenant Improvements for WSU  

Extension  

2016-827: Contract w/SimplexGrinnell, LP for Fire Sprinkler Testing & Maintenance  

2016-828: Contract w/Frontier Fence, Inc. for Fence Repair  

2016-829: Amended Agreement #3 w/Domestic Violence Services Through Homeless Grant  

2016-830: Records Transfer Agreement w/Greater Columbia Behavioral Health  

2016-831: Amended Agreement E w/St Dept of Commerce, Community Services & Housing 

for Emergency Solutions Grant  

2016-832: Agreement w/Reuters-West Publishing Corporation for Law Books  

2016-833: Grievance Arbitration Settlement Agreement & Release  

2016-834: Contract w/Granite Construction Co. for Meals Road Asphalt Repair Project  

2016-835: Contract w/Premier Excavation for Victoria Avenue Storm Water Project  

2016-836: Approval of Construction Plans of La Buena Vida Estates  

2016-837: Memorandum Amendment #1 w/Weed District No. 1 for Noxious Weed Control  

2016-838: Business Consultant Agreement w/Randall Barnes  

2016-839: Contract w/Cascade Engineering Services, Inc. for Diagnostics of Radar Devices  

2016-840: Participation Agreement w/Cities of Kennewick, Pasco, Richland & W Richland 

for Hanford Communities  

2016-841: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0135-101, Dept. 000  

2016-842: Amending the Alternate Dates for Budget Hearings – 2017-2018 Biennium 

 

There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 10:47 

a.m.   

 

 

_______________________________   ______________________________ 

Clerk of the Board      Chairman 

 



WEH
Text Box
a. Agreement w/M Dolven for Family Law Facilitator Services





















WEH
Text Box
b. Reappointment of S LePage to Mid-Columbia Libraries Board of Trustees





WEH
Text Box
c. Contract w/Washington Collectors for Collection Services



























WEH
Text Box
d. Payment Authorization to Kone, Inc for Elevator Services









 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 11-1-16        
Subject: Contract award for 

Fire Systems West 
Prepared by:       D. Waggoner  
Reviewed by:       

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract __X___ 
Pass Resolution  __X___  
Pass Ordinance  ______  
Pass Motion  ______  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda           __X__  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION / SUMMARY 
 
The Facilities Department is responsible for the maintenance, testing and certification of the fire alarm 
systems in various Benton County buildings.   This work is required to be performed by a licensed fire 
alarm system technician. 
 
Benton County Facilities solicited quotes from several service providers and their responses are listed 
below: 
  
   -- Fire Systems West, Inc Spokane Valley, WA $5,481 per year, not including WSST 
   -- Convergint Technologies Renton, WA   $19,973 per year, not including WSST 
   -- Performance Systems Bothell, WA   $12,194 per year, not including WSST 
 
 
Services will be provided at several locations including: Benton County Justice Center, Benton County 
Jail, Benton Franklin Health District, Animal, Prosser Courthouse and the Benton County Fairgrounds. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the attached Resolution and Contract between Benton County and Fire Systems West, Inc of 
Spokane Valley, WA. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Total cost not to exceed $34,999.00, including WSST and fees.  This amount will average approximately 
$8,000.00 per year for three years.  Funding source will be Current Expense of the Facilities budget. 
 
MOTION 
 
Move to approve the attached Public Works contract between Benton County and Fire Systems West, Inc 
of Spokane Valley, WA, for fire alarm system maintenance and testing. 
  
 

WEH
Text Box
e. Contract w/Fire Systems West, Inc. for Fire Alarm Maintenance & Testing



 RESOLUTION 
  
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF EXECUTING A PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT BETWEEN BENTON 
COUNTY AND FIRE SYSTEMS WEST, INC FOR FIRE ALARM SYSTEM TESTING AND 
MAINTENANCE SERVICES 
 
WHEREAS, the Facilities Department is responsible for the testing and maintenance of fire alarm 
systems in Benton County buildings; and 
  
WHEREAS, this work must be performed by a certified fire alarm system company; and 
 
WHEREAS, quotes were solicited from the several fire sprinkler testing companies and responses 
were received from: 
 -- Fire Systems West, Inc Spokane Valley, WA $5,481 per year, not including WSST 
 -- Convergint Technologies Renton, WA  $19,973 per year, not including WSST 
 -- Performance Systems Kennewick, WA  $12,194 per year, not including WSST 
 
WHEREAS, the Facilities Manager recommends authorizing a Public Works contract between 
Benton County and Fire Systems Wets, Inc of Spokane Valley, WA. to provide fire alarm system 
testing and  maintenance services to various Benton County locations; NOW THEREFORE,  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, 
the Board hereby approves the Public Works contract with Fire Systems West, Inc. in the amount 
not to exceed $34,999.00 including WSST; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Public Works contract will expire on December 31, 2018; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board authorizes the Chairman to sign the agreement attached 
hereto. 
 
 
Dated this  __________________ day of ___________________ , 2016. 
 
 
                                   ______ ___                
 Chairman of the Board 
 
  
                                   ______ ___                
 Member 
 
 
                                   ______ ___                
 Member 
  
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington. 
Attest....................................................... 

         Clerk of the Board 











































Please provide a written quote for 201 -201  rates for annual Fire Alarm System Inspections 
for the following Benton County locations.

This is a prevailing wage job.  Do not include any charges for prevailing wage intent and affidavit forms filed 
with Washington State Dept. of Labor & Industries.  Benton County agrees to reimburse the contractor 
actual expenses incurred for any prevailing wage filing fees (one intent and one affidavit filed for
each ).

CONTRACTOR NAME & 
ADDRESS/CONTACT PERSON 

PHONE 
 CONTRACTOR 

LICENSE# 
EMAIL 

Benton County Facilities 
7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. A 

Kennewick, WA  99336 
509-222-3704;  509-736-2708 (fax) 
dan.waggoner@co.benton.wa.us 

REQUEST FOR RATES FOR  
ANNUAL FIRE ALARM SYSTEM INSPECTIONS

 (  –Years) 

LOCATION/DESCRIPTION RATES  201

Justice Center (Kennewick)- EST-3 system, installed in 
2002, with approximately 797 smoke detectors, 135 heat 
detectors, 23 duct detectors and 59 Pull Stations.  The 
system also includes 45 Output Relays and 83 Inputs points. 
This system has 3 main panels and 5 remote annunciator 
panels.   

Coroner’s Office (Kennewick) has a Notifier SFP-400B 
panel, installed in 2004, with 4 smoke detectors and 1 
pull

Courthouse (Prosser) has a Simplex 2001 Series panel, 
installed in 1987, with 2 smoke detectors, 2 heat 
detectors and 13 pull stations. 

Travel/Per Diem Costs 



Requirements: 

Contractor must be certified on each type of system .

The inspection must include all initiating devices, all notification appliances, and all panels and
associated batteries.

Contractor shall be responsible for verifying that all devices are tested, and noted as pass or fail.  County
will be responsible for repairing any device that fails.

Contractor shall be responsible for necessary tools and equipment to perform the inspection.

Contractor shall be aware of the number of each type of device, prior to beginning the inspection.
Specifically, the number of heat detectors should be acknowledged so that proper planning can be made
to keep test equipment available and ready.

Please provide a quote to the following: 

Dan Waggoner 

Benton County Facilities 
7122 W. Okanogan Pl 
Kennewick, WA 99336 

Office: 509-222-3704 
Fax:     509-736-2708 
dan.waggoner@co.benton.wa.us 

Hourly Rate - programming changes and/or equipment 
changes or installations for work performed outside the 
annual inspection 

.





a.



State of Washington
Department of Labor & Industries

Prevailing Wage Section - Telephone 360-902-5335
PO Box 44540, Olympia, WA 98504-4540

Washington State Prevailing Wage
The PREVAILING WAGES listed here include both the hourly wage rate and the hourly rate of

fringe benefits. On public works projects, worker's wage and benefit rates must add to not less
than this total. A brief description of overtime calculation requirements are provided on the

Benefit Code Key.

Journey Level Prevailing Wage Rates for the Effective Date: 9/13/2016

County Trade Job Classification Wage Holiday Overtime Note
Benton Electronic Technicians Journey Level $11.00   1

https://fortress.wa.gov/lni/wagelookup/prvWagelookup.aspx

1 of 1 9/13/2016 9:02 AM



Revised 07/16 
 

 

 
BENTON COUNTY BACKGROUND CHECK 

AUTHORIZATION AND RELEASE 
 

 
 
 
Last Name   First Name   Middle Name    Sex: M   F 

 
     
All Other Previous Names Used      Date of Birth 

 
 
Driver’s License Number/State      Social Security Number 

 
 
Primary Phone number       Alternate Phone number   Email address 

 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
A background check is required of all Benton County employees and volunteers, as well as contractors 
assigned to work in secure areas and for individuals needing jail access.  Successful completion of the 
background check, as determined by Benton County, is required prior to the first day of work or entry into the 
jail.  If you are visiting the Benton County Jail for business and discover that a friend or family member is in 
custody you must immediately notify jail staff.  Jail access will be for official business only. No personal 
business is authorized. I understand that employment, jail access or volunteer status with Benton County is 
contingent upon the results of a background check.  I understand that adverse findings during my background 
check may result in denied jail access, withdrawal of any offer of employment/assignment with Benton County, 
and/or termination of my employment/assignment with Benton County.  I further understand that if I am found to 
have made any false or misleading statements in my application or background check materials, I may be 
denied access or have my employment/volunteer status terminated even after I have started work, and may 
subject myself to criminal prosecution. 
 
AUTHORIZATION AND RELEASE 
I hereby authorize Benton County (including but not limited to Personnel Resources Department, Sheriff’s 
Office, Juvenile Justice Center, and/or Prosecutor’s Office personnel) to conduct a background check in 
connection with my application for jail access and/or employment/assignment with Benton County.  I 
understand that this background check may include, but is not limited to, a review of records on file with the 
Washington State Patrol, the FBI National Crime Information Computer (NCIC) and Interstate Identification 
Index (III), local law enforcement agencies, the Department of Licensing, courts of law, and other agencies, and 
also may, depending on my employment or assignment, involve fingerprinting.  I understand that a more 
comprehensive background check is required for certain Benton County positions and may include review of 
records relating to arrests and/or other contacts with law enforcement. 
 
I hereby authorize and request any person, government entity, law enforcement or criminal justice agency, 
and/or other organization (public or private) to provide any information and/or records solicited by Benton 
County in connection with my application for jail access and/or work with Benton County.  I hereby release 
those persons and entities, and Benton County, its elected officials, judges, directors, appointees, managers, 
employees, volunteers, agents, and assigns, from any and all liability that may result from providing and/or 
soliciting such information and/or records.  A facsimile copy or photocopy of this waiver shall have the same 
force and effect as a copy with my original signature. 
 

 I am a  <circle all that apply>        Contractor          Volunteer    

Location to obtain access <circle all that apply>      BC Jail      BC Justice Center 

Your Company/Organization Name:  

Your Position Title:  



Revised 07/16 
 

 

 
 
ADVERSE HISTORY INFORMATION 
The following information pertains to all incidents, whether under Washington State law, the law of another 
State, or federal law.  If you answer “yes” to any question, please provide details including the date, 
location/jurisdiction, case number, charge if applicable, and arresting agency if applicable. 
 
 
 Have you ever been convicted of, or are you currently charged with, any crime (this includes adjudications 

as a juvenile unless expunged or vacated)?   
 
 
 Have you ever been found by way of any judicial, administrative, or employer process or investigation to 

have committed sexual harassment or to have engaged in any other forcible or nonconsensual sexual 
conduct? 

 
 
 Have you ever been terminated from employment or a previous position (including volunteer positions), or 

permitted to resign in lieu of termination? 
 
 

 If answered yes, please describe the circumstances surrounding the incident. 
 
 
 If requesting access to the jail, do you currently have any family members or friends in custody at the 

Benton County Jail?  If so, who is in jail and what is their relationship to you? 
 
 
 
 
CONTINUING NATURE OF ADVERSE HISTORY INFORMATION 
I understand that during all times I have jail access, am employed by, or have volunteer status with, Benton 
County, that I am required to inform my immediate supervisor or jail staff any time I am charged with or 
convicted of any crime, and any time I am named as a defendant/respondent in any lawsuit or complaint 
alleging sexual harassment or other forcible or nonconsensual sexual conduct.  I understand that failure to 
make such notification within one business day of such action, excluding any time I am incarcerated or 
otherwise incapable of making such notification, shall be grounds for denied access into the jail and/or  
immediate termination of my employment or volunteer status with Benton County.  
 
POTENTIAL DISQUALIFIERS 
 

 Felony convictions within the past five (5) years 
 Violent misdemeanors or domestic violence convictions within the past five (5) years 
 Drug related convictions within the past five (5) years 

 
Some exemptions may apply on a case by case basis. 
 

I have read, fully understand, and voluntarily provide this Authorization and Release.  By 
signing below, I also certify, under penalty of perjury as provided by the laws of the 
State of Washington, that I am the person identified above, and that all of the 
biographical, adverse history, and other information provided above is true, correct, and 
complete to the best of my knowledge. 
 
 
_________________________________    ________________________________ 
Signature       Date 

 
A minimum of two business days required for processing. 

Do Not Write Below This Line 

 
Comments:        COMPLETED BY AND DATE: 
 
 
 
 



  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 

Benton County Public Works has long been utilizing workstations not enrolled in the 
replacement fund.  During the last budget cycle funds were requested and set aside to purchase 
new equipment for the most in need.  It was understood that this new equipment would be 
enrolled into the replacement fund.  Turns out the need far outweighed the budgeted funds.  
Public Works has submitted a line item transfer to cover these additional expenses of 
approximately $17,835.   

 
SUMMARY  

Benton County Information Technology recommended purchasing Dell workstation and 
monitors.   

RECOMMENDATION  

Recommend the Board of Benton County Commissioners approve the posthumous purchase of 
Dell workstations and monitors used by Public Works in an amount not to exceed 2015-2016 
budgeted funds (3192) plus line item transfer of $17,825.00.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT  

   None.  Funds in 2015-2016 Biennial Budget 
 
MOTION  

AGENDA/WORKSHOP ITEM TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED         
Meeting Date: November 1, 2016 Execute Contract      Consent Agenda X   
Subject: Approve purchase of additional 

workstations and monitors from 
Dell Pass Resolution  X   Public Hearing     

   Pass Ordinance     1st Discussion    
By: Teri L. Holmes Pass Motion     2nd Discussion     
Reviewed By: Loretta SmithKelty Other     Other      
                    

WEH
Text Box
f. Purchase of Additional Workstations & Monitors from Dell Premier for Public Works



Orig: Information Technology  
cc: Auditor,  

Prepared by: T. Holmes 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF ADDITIONAL WORKSTATIONS 
AND MONITORS FROM DELL PREMIER REPLACING LEAVE-TO-DIE WORKSTATIONS 
IN PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT.  
 
WHEREAS, Benton County has selected Dell workstations and laptops as its standard; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Benton County Public Works requested in the 2015-2016 Biennial Budget 
funding for workstations to replace Leave-to-die computers currently used in their 
department; and  
 
WHEREAS, Section 2.6 of the Computer Replacement policy requires all new computer  
equipment receive approval by the Board of Benton County Commissioners before 
purchasing; and 
 
WHEREAS, Information Technology assembled eQuotes from Dell Premier for various 
workstations utilizing Washington State Contract pricing and placed the order for the 
purchases;  
 
WHEREAS, the total expenditures were more than were allocated in the 2015-2016 budget; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, Public Works as submitted a line item transfer from existing funds to cover the 
additional expenses of approximately $17,825; NOW THEREFORE,  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, 
hereby concurs with Information Technology’s selection and approves the posthumous 
purchase of Dell workstations and monitors from Dell Premier for use by the Benton County 
Public Works department in an amount not to exceed the 2015-2016 budget plus Line Item 
Transfer of $17,825. 
 
 
Dated this  day of  ,   
  
  
 Chairman of the Board 
  
  
 Member 
  
  
 Member 

 
Constituting the Board of County Commissioners 

Attest:   of Benton County, Washington
 Clerk of the Board  
 



WEH
Text Box
g. Public Access Easement Near Candy Mountain





















WEH
Text Box
h. Salary Request Statement



WEH
Text Box
i. Agreement w/Columbia Irrigation District for Purchase of Raw Material from Owens Quarry













WEH
Text Box
j. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0101-101, Dept. 500







WEH
Text Box
k. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120





WEH
Text Box
l. Agreement w/A Armijo for Interpreting Services























WEH
Text Box
m. Proclamation for National Adoption Day





AGENDA ITEM 
Meeting Date: Nov. 1, 2016  
Subject:  2017-2022 CIP 
Prepared by:       Paul Schut 

TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  __ X _ 
Pass Ordinance  _____ 
Pass Motion _____ 
Other  _____ 

Consent Agenda   _____ 
Public Hearing     __X__ 
1st Discussion    ___ 
2nd Discussion    _____ 
Other   _____ 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Attached is a copy of the 2017-2022 Capital Improvement Plan for final 
discussion with Board of Benton County Commissioners.  

RECOMMENDATION 
Approve and adopt the attached 2017-2022 Capital Improvement Plan. 

MOTION 
The Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby approves and adopts the 2017-
2022 Capital Improvement Plan as currently presented. 

WEH
Text Box
Capital Improvement Plan ~ P Schut



 

 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

2017-2022 

Benton County 
 

PO Box 190 

620 Market Street  

Prosser, WA 99350 

(509) 786-5600 

www.co.benton.wa.us 



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2017-2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Capital Improvement Plan Navigation Tips 

BC 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN NAVIGATION TIPS 

There are a number of ways to navigate through the Capital Improvement Plan.  Listed below are the two easiest options: 

1. The Table of Contents contains links to all sections of the book.  To go directly to the section you would like to see, simply
click on the section name or page number directly in the table of contents.

If at any time you would like to return to the table of contents, click on Return to TOC located at the bottom of each page and
it will take you back to the CIP table of contents.

2. Click on Bookmarks tab to the left of the window to view all of the bookmarked pages; the format is similar to the table of
contents.  To expand a subsection, click the “+”. To go to a section you would like to see, simply click on the section name.

3. At the bottom of the window the “◄” and “►” buttons take you back and forward one page at a time.  The “▐◄” and “►▌”
take you to the first and last page of the document, respectively.

1 
Return to TOC 



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2017-2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Table of Contents 

BC 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Page 

Capital Improvement Plan Table of Contents.……………………………………………………………………………………………. 2 

Adoption Resolution of the 2017-2022 Capital Improvement Plan……………………………………………………….……………. 3 

Board of Benton County Commissioners…………………………………………………………………………………………………. 4 

County Departments……………….……………………………………………………………………………………………........................... 5-7 

Introduction………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………... 8-12 

Impact of the CIP on the Operating Budget………………………………………….…………………………………………………... 13 

Summary by Funding Type ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 14 

Summary of All Capital Projects by Funding Type……………………………………………………………………………………… 15-16 

Capital Project Fund………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 17-26 

Park Development Fund………………………………....……………………………….…………………………………….................. 27-32 

33-37 REET Fund…………………………………….……………………………………………………………………………………………. 

Rural Capital Fund…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………............... 38-39 

Solid Waste Fund……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………....................... 40 

1/10 Percent Criminal Justice Fund …………………………..………………………………………………………………………………… 41-45

Jail Depreciation Reserve Fund ……………………...…………………………………………………………………………………….......... 46-47

48-67

68-71

County Road Fund…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

Addendum:    Ongoing    Maintenance…………………………………………………………………………………………………............. 

Glossary……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….......... 72-77

2 



RESOLUTION 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 

Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . . 

Chairman of the Board 

Chairman Pro Tem 

Member 

Constituting the Board of County 
Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Commissioners of Benton County, 

Clerk of the Board Washington 

IN THE MATTER OF ADOPTING THE 2017-2022 BENTON COUNTY 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN. 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners desires to update the Benton County 
Capital Improvement Plan in conjunction with the biennial Benton County Budget; and 

WHEREAS, the Capital Improvement Plan is a planning document to be used in setting 
policy and establishing priorities for capital projects; and 

WHEREAS, the 2017-2022 Capital Improvement Plan shall be adopted as part of the 
County’s budget process and will be amended into the Capital Facilities Element of the 
Benton County Comprehensive Plan as allowed under RCW 36.70A.130(2)(a)iv; NOW, 
THEREFORE,  

BE IT RESOLVED,  that the Board of Benton County Commissioners herby adopts the 
attached 2017-2022 Benton County Capital Improvement Plan. 

P. Schut 



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2017-2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Board of Benton County Commissioners 

BC 
BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

District 1 Benton County Commissioner Jerome Delvin is serving his first term as commissioner from the 
1st District, which includes Richland and West Richland in Benton County. He previously served two and one-half 
terms in the state Senate and five terms in the state House of Representatives. He was a former military policeman 
and officer in the Hanford Patrol. See more… 

District 2 Benton County Commissioner Shon R. Small was elected to start his first term on January 1, 2011. 
Commissioner Small attended Walla Walla Community College and majored in Criminal Justice, preparing him for 
a future career as a Police Officer. He served Benton County for 22 years during his career in Law Enforcement 
with 20 of those years working for the Benton County Sheriff's Office. See more… 

District 3 Benton County Commissioner James R. Beaver was elected to start his first term on January 1, 
2009. Commissioner Beaver earned his degree in Economics from Washington State University. He joins the County 
bringing 18 years of government experience with him. In 1990, he was elected to the Kennewick City Council and 
was appointed by the Council to serve as Mayor from 1996 to 2008 making him the longest consecutive mayor in 
over 100 years.  See more… 

4 
Return to TOC 

http://www.co.benton.wa.us/pview.aspx?id=4734
http://www.co.benton.wa.us/pview.aspx?id=4734
http://www.co.benton.wa.us/pview.aspx?id=4732
http://www.co.benton.wa.us/pview.aspx?id=4732
http://www.co.benton.wa.us/pview.aspx?id=1418&amp;amp%3BcatID=45
http://www.co.benton.wa.us/pview.aspx?id=1418&amp;amp%3BcatID=45


BENTON COUNTY ~ 2017-2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Benton County Departments 

BC 
BENTON COUNTY DEPARTMENTS 

The departments listed below pertain to the projects that are listed in the Capital Improvement Plan and do not include all 
Benton County departments.  Each department listed below was involved in preparing their section of this document.  Click on 
the department name for additional information regarding the services they provide. 

Benton County Commissioners Office 
The County Commissioners adopt ordinances, resolutions, motions, levy taxes, appropriate revenue, and adopt the final budget 
for  the  County.  The  legislative  body  generally  confirms  appointments  to  County  boards  and  commissions.  The  County 
Commissioners generally appoint the members of the boundary review board and planning commission in counties that have 
created this board and commission. The County Commissioners can also sit as the board of equalization (the County board of 
property tax appeals) to review disputed assessments. 

Mission 
The Commissioners’ department is accessible to its constituents, with responsible elected officials who offer a broad, balanced prospective and 
services to the community. 

Benton County Corrections Department 
The Benton County Sheriff's Office Bureau of Corrections provides incarceration and alternative program services to all law 
enforcement jurisdictions within Benton County. In addition, the jail provides contract services to other agencies throughout the 
State. The Benton County jail provides local user agencies several alternative programs to meet community needs; an electronic 
home monitoring program (EHM), work release program and work crew program. The operation of the alternative programs 
save user agencies several hundreds of thousands of dollars each year, based on the cost of full incarceration. 

Mission 
The mission of the Benton County Sheriff's Office is to consistently earn the public's trust and contribute to safety and security in our 
community by providing the highest quality law enforcement, corrections and support services possible within the resources entrusted to us. 
We achieve our mission through investing in available resources in highly-motivated, professionally trained, ethical team members who are 
committed to working in partnership with the community, steadily improving interagency cooperation, and exhibiting the highest degree of 
personal and professional integrity. 

5 
Return to TOC 

http://www.co.benton.wa.us/pview.aspx?id=704&amp;amp%3Bcatid=45
http://www.co.benton.wa.us/pview.aspx?id=709&amp;amp%3BcatID=45


BENTON COUNTY ~ 2017-2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Benton County Departments 

BC 

 
 
 
 
 

Benton County District Court 
Benton County’s five full time judges process Sheriff, State Patrol, Cities of Benton City, Kennewick, Prosser, Richland, and West 
Richland misdemeanors and infractions as well as small claims and civil suits involving amounts under $50,000. District Court 
also handles traffic citations, name changes and protection orders. 

 
Mission 
To provide fair and equal access to our Court for all members of the public.  To resolve civil and criminal cases while maintaining the respect 
and dignity of the individuals. 

 
Benton County Facilities Department 
The Facilities Department is responsible for the physical environment of all Benton County Facilities. The facilities include a 700- 
bed jail in Kennewick, the Courthouse at the County Seat in Prosser, the Kennewick Justice Center, the Health District Building in 
Kennewick, the Kennewick Annex on Canal Blvd., Benton County Animal Control Facility, and other smaller satellite offices. 
This department also acts as the construction contracting office for Benton County administrative services. 

 
Mission 
It is the mission of the Benton County Facilities Department to provide a safe, secure, productive, and comfortable work area for Benton 
County employees and the users of Benton County Facilities. 

 
Benton County Fairgrounds 
The Benton County Fairgrounds is a multipurpose, county owned facility which is perfect for meetings, trade shows, livestock 
events, RV rallies, concerts, sporting events, day camps and weddings. The location and layout of the Benton County Fairgrounds 
offers an affordable choice for almost any type of event. It is handicap accessible, fully fenced and can be accessed by three major 
street entrances with parking for over 2000 vehicles. The employees are well trained and help guide event holders through all 
phases of an event. 

 

Mission 
The mission of the Benton County Fairgrounds is to make it our challenge to meet your every event need; priding ourselves on uncompromising 
services. 

6 
Return to TOC 

 

http://www.co.benton.wa.us/pview.aspx?id=705&amp;amp%3Bcatid=45
http://www.co.benton.wa.us/pview.aspx?id=1359&amp;amp%3BcatID=45


BENTON COUNTY ~ 2017-2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Benton County Departments 

BC 

 

 
 

Benton County Information Technology 
Information Technology  is  an  internal  services  department  that  provides  information  technology  and  telecommunications 
support for Benton County departments. Information Technology also processes outgoing mail for departments in Prosser. 

 
Mission 
The mission for Benton County Information Technology is to improve the stability, functionality and performance of the Benton County 
information technology environment and support all departments in using information technology to meet their goals and objectives. 

 
Benton County Parks Department 
Benton County supports a small parks system to provide recreational and educational venues for the health, enjoyment, and 
enrichment of the community. The Park Department works for the County Commissioners at the advisement of the Benton 
County Park Board, and oversees eight separate park properties within the County. Benton County maintains park facilities only, 
and conducts no recreational programming. 

 
Mission 
To provide safe and meaningful educational and recreational experiences for both our residents and visiting public that showcases the natural 
resources and landscapes of Benton County. 

 
Benton County Public Works Department 
Benton County, Washington has a total area of 1,760 square miles. The Hanford Site, under Federal control encompasses 586 
square miles. Fifty-seven square miles of the County is covered with water. Benton County Public  Works is staffed with 
engineers, survey, construction and solid waste specialists, road maintenance crews and professional support staff responsible 
for the planning, engineering, design, construction, operation and maintenance of approximately 850 miles of County roads (600 
miles paved and 250 miles gravel) and 80 bridges within the 1,174 square land miles not under Federal control. 

 
Mission 
Provide solution-oriented, cost effective, quality public works services and a safe, efficient county road system in accordance with applicable 
laws, resolutions, and regulations. 

 

7 
Return to TOC 

 

http://www.co.benton.wa.us/pView.aspx?id=1361&amp;catid=45
http://www.co.benton.wa.us/pview.aspx?id=707&amp;amp%3Bcatid=45
http://www.co.benton.wa.us/pview.aspx?id=713&amp;amp%3Bcatid=45


 

 

Introduction  

INTRODUCTION 

to this Capital Im-

provement Plan 

(CIP), which is a 

multiyear plan, will 

provide information 

on the plan and pro-

grammed approach to 

utilizing the County’s 



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2017-2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Introduction 

BC 
What are Capital Improvements? 

INTRODUCTION 

The Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) is a six-year roadmap for creating, maintaining and paying for Benton County’s present and 
future infrastructure needs. The CIP outlines project costs, funding sources and estimated future operating costs associated with 
each capital improvement. The plan is designed to ensure that capital improvements will be made when and where they are needed, 
and that the County will have the funds to pay for and maintain them. 

Capital improvement projects are non-routine capital expenditures requiring a significant amount of money usually consisting of the 
purchase of equipment, acquisition of land, design and construction of new assets, or the renovation, rehabilitation or expansion of 
existing capital assets. Capital projects usually have an expected useful life of at least five years. 

Capital improvements make up the bricks and mortar, or infrastructure that all Counties must have in place to provide essential 
services to current residents and support new growth and development. They also are designed to prevent the deterioration of the 
County’s existing infrastructure, and respond to and anticipate the future growth of the County. A wide range of projects comprise 
capital improvements as illustrated by the examples below: 

• court facilities and office buildings;
• parks, trails open space, and other related facilities;
• roads, bridges, traffic signals and other traffic control devices including fiber optic infrastructure needed for the operation of

intelligent transportation systems;
• landscape beautification projects;
• computer software and hardware systems other than personal computers and printers;
• flood control drainage channels, storm drains and retention basins;
• major equipment purchases.

8 
Return to TOC 



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2017-2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Introduction 

BC 
Growing Counties such as Benton County face a special set of complex problems.  These Counties need to build new roads, add 
public amenities such as parks and expand public safety services to maintain, replace, rehabilitate and/or upgrade existing capital 
assets such as roads, parks, and buildings. 

Benton County has kept pace with the rapid growth through many new public assets. Benton County also has completed many 
capital projects that involved renovating, rehabilitating or expanding existing infrastructure or buildings. Notable projects 
completed since 2009 include the following: 

2016   Metasys System* 
2016   Property Tax and Assessment System* 
2016   Kennewick Annex & Juvenile Justice Center Parking Lot Reconfiguration* 
2016   Jail West Wing Shower Stalls Remodel* 
2016   Fairgrounds Building 16 HVAC* 
2016   Inmate Management Hardware and Operating System* 
2016   Vista Park Overhaul 
2016   Tyrell Road- Phase I*
2016   Sellards Road- Phase I*
2016   Nine Canyon Road- Phase II*
2015   Nine Canyon Road- Phase I 
2015   Fairgrounds Irrigation Infrastructure 
2015   Network Firewall, Load Balancing, Break Fix Monitoring 
2015   Kennewick Road Maintenance Shop 
2015   Benton County Courthouse Renovation  
2015   Benton County Courthouse HVAC Replacement 
2014 Justice Center Carpet 
2014 Courtroom Sound System Upgrades (Courtroom A, D, 5, 6, and Prosser) 
2014 Benton County Fairground’s Bathroom 
2014 Benton County Courthouse Shuffle 
2014 Video Conferencing System 
2014 Voice Network Upgrade 
2013 Port of Benton (Walter Clore Center) 
2013 District Court Remodel 

9 
Return to TOC 



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2017-2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Introduction 

BC 
Completed Projects Continued 

2013   Travis Road (Seller Road to Henson Road) 
2013    Benton County Clerk Remodel 
2012    Jail Kitchen Dishwasher 
2012 OPTO22 Control System 
2012 Storage Area Network (SAN) Expansion 
2012 Voice System Transition 
2012    Network Switches 
2011    Benton County Health District Tenant Improvement – for Human Services 
2011    Benton County Animal Control Facility 
2010    Fairgrounds Mainline Replacement 
2010    Wiser Parkway 
2009    Remodel Master Control at Benton County Jail 
2009    800 MHZ – Benton County Emergency Services 
2009    Justice Center District Court Remodel 

* Scheduled to be completed by the end 2016 

Paying for Capital Improvements

In many respects, the County planning process for selecting, scheduling and financing capital improvements parallels the way an 
individual might plan for buying a new house or car. This process entails an assessment of many valid competing needs, a 
determination of priorities, an evaluation of costs and financing options and an establishment of realistic completion timeframes.

10 
Return to TOC 



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2017-2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Introduction 

BC 
Guidelines and Policies Used in Developing the CIP 

The  Benton  County  Commissioners’  strategic goals  and  key  objectives  and  the  County’s  financial  policies  provide  the  broad 
parameters for development of the annual capital plan. Additional considerations include the following: 

• Does a project support the County Commissioners’ strategic goals?
• Does a project qualify as a capital project as defined in the County Budget Policy and have an expected useful life of at least

five years?
• Does a project satisfactorily address all federal, state and county legal and financial requirements?
• Does a project support the County’s favorable investment ratings and financial integrity?
• Does a project support the County’s goal of ensuring all geographic areas of the County have comparable quality in the types

of services that are defined in the Capital Improvement Plan?
• Does a project prevent the deterioration of the County’s existing infrastructure, and respond to and anticipate future growth

in the County?
• Does a project encourage and sustain quality economic development?
• Is a project responsive to the needs of residents and businesses within the constraints of reasonable taxes and fees?
• Does a project leverage funds provided by other units of government where appropriate?

Master plans also help determine which projects should be included in the CIP and the timeframes in which the projects should be 
completed. For example, the County's master plan for its parks system, called the "Parks Comprehensive Plan", was completed in 
2009.  Through a public process, the Parks Comprehensive Plan inventoried the community's existing recreational assets and 
forecasted future demand; then looked at what additions or improvements could be made to existing park lands to meet those 
needs, and what opportunities may exist for the addition of new park lands to the system. 

Economic forecasts also are a critical source of information and guidance throughout the capital planning process. The forecasts 
assess external factors such as whether the local economy is growing or contracting, population growth, inflation for construction 
materials, the value of land, and other variables that may affect the County’s ability to finance needed services and capital projects. 

11 
Return to TOC 



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2017-2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Introduction 

 

BC 
 
Benton County’s Biennial CIP Development Process 

 
In conjunction with the biennial budgeting process, the Commissioners Office coordinates the countywide process of revising and 
updating the County’s capital plan. County staff members from all departments participate in the extensive review of projects in the 
existing plan and the identification of new projects for inclusion in the CIP. The County Commissioners’ commitment to the needs 
and desires of Benton County citizens is a critical factor considered during the capital planning process, as well as compliance with 
legal limits and financial resources. 

 
The Commissioners appropriate the first two years of the plan. The remaining four years are for planning purposes and funding is 
not guaranteed to occur in the year planned. County Commissioners make the final decision about whether and when to fund a 
project. 

 
Once projects are selected for inclusion in the capital plan, decisions must be made about which projects should be recommended for 
inclusion in the first two years of the plan. Determining how and when to schedule projects is a complicated process. It must take 
into account the County Commissioners’ strategic goals as well as all of the variables that affect the County’s ability to generate the 
funds to pay for these projects without jeopardizing its ability to provide routine, ongoing services and one-time or emergency 
services when needed. 

 
Prior to County Commissioners’ consideration of the proposed CIP, the capital projects are reviewed and evaluated to ensure there 
is a revenue source for all of the estimated expenditures. In recent years, some of the capital project revenue sources have been 
obligated to pay down outstanding debt issuance therefore in-depth discussions assist the County Commissioners in making the 
best current and future business decisions. 

 
The County Commissioners review the recommended CIP during a special scheduled workshop.  Commissioners also consider the 
recommendations of staff before making the final decision about which projects should be included in which years of the CIP. 

12 
Return to TOC 
 

 



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2017-2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Impact of the CIP on the Operating Budget 

BC 
IMPACT OF THE CIP ON THE OPERATING BUDGET 

Benton County’s operating budget is directly affected by the CIP. Almost every new capital improvement entails ongoing expenses 
for routine operation, repair and maintenance upon completion or acquisition. Also, many new capital facilities require the addition 
of new positions. Existing County facilities and equipment that were once considered state-of-the art will require rehabilitation, 
renovation or upgrades to accommodate new uses and/or address safety and structural improvements. Older facilities usually 
involve higher maintenance and repair costs as well. Pay-as-you-go capital projects, grant-matching funds and lease/purchase 
capital expenses also come directly from the operating budget. 

The costs of future operations and maintenance for new CIP projects are estimated based on the current cost of similar buildings 
and/or departments. Various departments have experts on different types of operating costs are consulted in order to provide the 
most accurate estimates. Operating costs are carefully considered in deciding which projects move forward in the CIP because it is 
not possible for the County to fund concurrently several large-scale projects that have significant operating budget  impacts. 
Therefore, implementation timetables are established that stagger projects over time. 

County Commissioners review operating and maintenance costs associated with capital projects scheduled to come on-line in the 
upcoming fiscal year during the budget workshops. If operating and maintenance costs have been identified in a project the 
departments are required to either absorb the additional costs or submit a supplemental request to receive funding. Supplemental 
requests for CIP operating and maintenance costs are balanced against other requests for additional funding. 

13 
Return to TOC 



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2017-2018 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Summary by Funding Type 

C 
SUMMARY BY FUNDING TYPE 

Benton County’s CIP contains a wide range of projects that make up a well-rounded, long-range program for County improvements. 

The graph below shows new FY 2017-2018 CIP projects by funding type, excluding grant appropriation and carryover. The 
following section includes a summary of all capital projects by fund. A narrative description of the major CIP categories precedes 
the project detail sheets for each project. Each detail sheet contains a project identification name, a short project description, the 
anticipated funding source, projected costs for each of the six years, and the operating impact, if any. The operating impact section 
remains expanded to show approximately how much will be spent on personnel, supplies, utilities, insurance, etc. along with a 
description of the operating impact. 

14 
Return to TOC 

B 



15
Return to TOC

Estimated Beginning Balance (Jan 1st)  $             21,381,901  $             15,717,391  $             14,497,878  $             12,978,365  $             11,688,156  $             10,483,643 
REVENUE                      171,212                      171,212                      171,212                      171,212                      171,212                      171,212 
CIP PROJECTS                 (4,622,722)                    (177,725)                    (477,725)                    (248,421)                    (162,725)                    (162,725)
OTHER EXPENDITURES                 (1,213,000)                 (1,213,000)                 (1,213,000)                 (1,213,000)                 (1,213,000)                 (1,213,000)
Estimated Ending Fund Balance (Dec 31st) 15,717,391$             14,497,878$             12,978,365$             11,688,156$             10,483,643$             9,279,130$               

Estimated Beginning Balance (Jan 1st)  $                  512,214  $                  317,899  $                  238,585  $                    27,270  $                    10,956  $                      9,641 
REVENUE                        21,253                        21,253                        21,253                        21,253                        21,253                        21,253 
CIP PROJECTS                    (193,000)                      (78,000)                    (210,000)                      (15,000)                                 -                                 - 
OTHER EXPENDITURES                      (22,568)                      (22,568)                      (22,568)                      (22,568)                      (22,568)                      (22,568)
Estimated Ending Fund Balance (Dec 31st) 317,899$                  238,585$                  27,270$                    10,956$                    9,641$                      8,327$                      

Estimated Beginning Balance (Jan 1st)  $               1,565,384  $                  700,470  $                  854,853  $               1,009,236  $               1,163,619  $               1,318,003 
REVENUE                      315,302                      315,302                      315,302                      315,302                      315,302                      315,302 
CIP PROJECTS                 (1,019,297)                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 - 
OTHER EXPENDITURES                    (160,919)                    (160,919)                    (160,919)                    (160,919)                    (160,919)                    (160,919)
Estimated Ending Fund Balance (Dec 31st) 700,470$                  854,853$                  1,009,236$               1,163,619$               1,318,003$               1,472,386$               

Estimated Beginning Balance (Jan 1st)  $               1,708,271  $               1,982,228  $               1,451,186  $                  955,143  $               1,304,100  $               1,653,058 
REVENUE                   3,189,739                   3,189,739                   3,189,739                   3,189,739                   3,189,739                   3,189,739 
CIP PROJECTS (75,000)                     (880,000)                   (845,000)                   -                                -                                -                                
OTHER EXPENDITURES                 (2,840,782)                 (2,840,782)                 (2,840,782)                 (2,840,782)                 (2,840,782)                 (2,840,782)
Estimated Ending Fund Balance (Dec 31st) 1,982,228$               1,451,186$               955,143$                  1,304,100$               1,653,058$               2,002,015$               

Estimated Beginning Balance (Jan 1st)  $               4,794,708  $               4,753,571  $               5,521,731  $               6,289,892  $               7,058,053  $               7,826,214 
REVENUE                      768,161                      768,161                      768,161                      768,161                      768,161                      768,161 
CIP PROJECTS                    (809,298)                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 - 
OTHER EXPENDITURES                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 - 
Estimated Ending Fund Balance (Dec 31st) 4,753,571$               5,521,731$               6,289,892$               7,058,053$               7,826,214$               8,594,374$               

FUND 0144-101                                                
RURAL CAPITAL FUND

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022

FUND 0153-101                                                                 
VIT IMPACT FUND                               

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022

FUND 0110-102                                                        
PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022

FUND 0130-101                                                        
REET FUND

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022

FY 2017-2022 Capital Improvement Plan
Summary of All Capital Projects by Funding Type 

FUND 0305-101                                                  
CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022



16
Return to TOC

FY 2017-2022 Capital Improvement Plan
Summary of All Capital Projects by Funding Type 

Estimated Beginning Balance (Jan 1st)  $               8,294,137  $               2,455,702  $               4,386,756  $               6,317,811  $               8,248,865  $             10,179,920 
REVENUE                   3,531,055                   3,531,055                   3,531,055                   3,531,055                   3,531,055                   3,531,055 
CIP PROJECTS                 (7,769,490)                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 - 
OTHER EXPENDITURES                 (1,600,000)                 (1,600,000)                 (1,600,000)                 (1,600,000)                 (1,600,000)                 (1,600,000)
Estimated Ending Fund Balance (Dec 31st) 2,455,702$               4,386,756$               6,317,811$               8,248,865$               10,179,920$             12,110,975$             

Estimated Beginning Balance (Jan 1st)  $                  756,852  $                  546,020  $                  585,187  $                  624,354  $                  663,521  $                  702,689 
REVENUE                      180,156                      180,156                      180,156                      180,156                      180,156                      180,156 
CIP PROJECTS                    (250,000)                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 - 
OTHER EXPENDITURES                    (140,989)                    (140,989)                    (140,989)                    (140,989)                    (140,989)                    (140,989)
Estimated Ending Fund Balance (Dec 31st) 546,020$                  585,187$                  624,354$                  663,521$                  702,689$                  741,856$                  

Estimated Beginning Balance (Jan 1st)  $               3,677,477  $               1,727,626  $               2,513,775  $               1,899,924  $               2,686,073  $               3,472,222 
REVENUE                      786,149                      786,149                      786,149                      786,149                      786,149                      786,149 
CIP PROJECTS                 (2,736,000)                                 -                 (1,400,000)                                 -                                 -                                 - 
OTHER EXPENDITURES                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 - 
Estimated Ending Fund Balance (Dec 31st) 1,727,626$               2,513,775$               1,899,924$               2,686,073$               3,472,222$               4,258,372$               

Estimated Beginning Balance (Jan 1st)  $                             -  $           (10,684,420)  $           (11,184,420)  $           (11,659,420)  $           (12,319,420)  $           (12,989,420)
REVENUE                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 - 
CIP PROJECTS               (10,684,420)                    (500,000)                    (475,000)                    (660,000)                    (670,000)               (10,790,000)
OTHER EXPENDITURES                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 - 
Estimated Ending Fund Balance (Dec 31st) (10,684,420)$            (11,184,420)$            (11,659,420)$            (12,319,420)$            (12,989,420)$            (23,779,420)$            

FUND TO BE DETERMINED PROJECTS 2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022

FUND 0101-102                                                     
CRIMP FUND

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022

FUND 0133-101                                                     
1/10% CRIMINAL JUSTICE FUND

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022

FUND 0142-101                                                          
JAIL DEPRECIATION RESERVE

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022



Capital Project Fund 

CAPITAL PROJECT 

FUND  

is for routine capital 

outlay purchases and 

projects by the county 

including but not lim-

ited to office furniture, 

major building mainte-

nance, real property ac-

quisition, building re-

modeling projects, road 

projects and water pro-

jects. Said funds shall 

be invested by the Ben-

ton County Treasurer 

with interest accruing to 

the Current Expense 

fund.  



17
Return to TOC

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 94,698$                  49,087$              3,475$                3,475$                31,711$              3,475$                3,475$                
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 94,698$                  49,087$              3,475$                3,475$                31,711$              3,475$                3,475$                

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 17,376                    17,376                -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 77,323                    31,711                3,475                  3,475                  31,711                3,475                  3,475                  

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
TOTAL 94,698$                  49,087$              3,475$                3,475$                31,711$              3,475$                3,475$                

PARTICIPATING FUNDS

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022

In an effort to improve wireless security, provide the best internet experience possible to guests, and to make County internet services more reliable, it is recommended to
isolate public wireless traffic to its own internet service. Separating public wireless internet usage will reduce any impact the public may impose on day to day County internet
services. In addition to separating the public wireless service, the County will purchase a dedicated firewall that will integrate the new internet service with the County’s
existing wireless infrastructure.

History and Current Status
Monitoring the internet traffic on BenCoGuest has raised some security and traffic logging questions. Keeping Benton County's data safe and secure is a top priority.
Protecting County internet services regardless of whether provided by the County Network or wirelessly has become as equally important.

Operating and Maintenance Impact
The ongoing costs for this project are associated with a three (3) year maintenance/support agreement and yearly increases in bandwidth. There will be an investment in a
physical device to carry out the Public Wireless Internet Improvement.  All hardware purchased will be enrolled into the Central Services Replacement Fund Policy.

Public Wireless Internet Improvement
Countywide

Description and Scope
The County's secure public wireless internet (BenCoGuest) usage continues to increase. The importance of making the internet available to both County employees and the
general public has created an environment that promotes transparency, innovation, and efficient government. Currently, public wireless users share the same internet
bandwidth as County employees.   

Purpose and Need



18
Return to TOC

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 270,415$                84,165$              37,250$              37,250$              37,250$              37,250$              37,250$              
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 270,415$                84,165$              37,250$              37,250$              37,250$              37,250$              37,250$              

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 46,915                    46,915                -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 223,499                  37,250                37,250                37,250                37,250                37,250                37,250                

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
TOTAL 270,415$                84,165$              37,250$              37,250$              37,250$              37,250$              37,250$              

PARTICIPATING FUNDS

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022

Protecting County data, resources, and services from unauthorized mobile devices and users is critical in today’s fight against cyber threats. The installation of an identity
services engine can help make certain that all devices connected to the County network are secure. In addition to inspecting mobile devices, this security tool can analyze
users.  By confirming mobile devices and users meet minimal security measures, the County network will continue to deliver top quality services to its constituents.

History and Current Status
Information Technology Department (IT) is finishing the installation of new firewalls that will complete one of the County’s Capital Improvement Plan Projects: Network
Firewall, Load Balancing, and Break Fix Monitoring. Once the firewall installation is finished, IT will have strengthened its initial defense mechanism against cyber threats.
An identity services engine will complement the firewalls, and provide IT with a second layer of security to protect County data.

Operating and Maintenance Impact
The ongoing costs for this project are associated with annual maintenance and support. There will be an investment in a physical device to carry out identity engine services.
All hardware purchased will be enrolled into the Central Services Replacement Fund Policy.

Identification Protection
Countywide

Description and Scope
The growing number of County owned mobile devices (laptops, tablets, smart phones) and remote users has sparked a new workforce that needs to stay connected to County
network resources at all times, regardless of location. One of the many problems with a mobile workforce is keeping mobile devices updated with the latest security patches.
With this project, the County will be able to control which County resources are available to a mobile device based on device and user security policies.  

Purpose and Need



19
Return to TOC

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 185,000$                140,000$            15,000$              15,000$              15,000$              -$                    -$                    
-                              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 185,000$                140,000$            15,000$              15,000$              15,000$              -$                    -$                    

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 185,000                  140,000              15,000                15,000                15,000                -                      -                      
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
TOTAL 185,000$                140,000$            15,000$              15,000$              15,000$              -$                    -$                    

PARTICIPATING FUNDS

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022

Utilizing Microsoft Government Cloud environment will provide the County cloud space designed around Government security requirements. Engaging professional services
to assist in the development of a strategic plan to move County data/services to the cloud can ensure a quality end result. Once complete, an internet connection is all that will
be needed to take advantage of Office 365 applications.

History and Current Status
Many State and local agencies are already using Office 365. The costs associated to procuring, installing, upgrading, and maintaining these services has become too costly to
keep in-house. One County department has already signed a contract with a vendor who provides SharePoint support specific to law enforcement. IT is continually training
on and testing Office 365 tools.

Operating and Maintenance Impact
The ongoing costs for this project are associated to professional services needed to migrate County data to Office 365. The County Microsoft Enterprise Agreement already
covers Office 365 licensing, and since we are already paying for Microsoft Premier Support, we also receive Office 365 support at no extra cost.

Microsoft Office 365 Migration (Cloud)
Countywide

Description and Scope
Microsoft Office 365 is a cloud technology that can provide the County access to applications including Microsoft Office, OneDrive, SharePoint, and Email. Office 365 focuses
on sharing, collaboration, and storage which provides enterprise ready tools to help businesses achieve greater efficiencies. Besides offering higher quality tools for County
business, Office 365 reduces the amount of infrastructure needed to support these applications.

Purpose and Need



20
Return to TOC

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 167,620$                125,160$            -$                    -$                    42,460$              -$                    -$                    
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 167,620$                125,160$            -$                    -$                    42,460$              -$                    -$                    

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 82,700                    82,700                -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 84,920                    42,460                -                      -                      42,460                -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
TOTAL 167,620$                125,160$            -$                    -$                    42,460$              -$                    -$                    

PARTICIPATING FUNDS

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022

In seeing the County’s virtual usage increase, purchasing a storage area network strictly for virtualization is desirable. In addition to addressing specific virtualization storage
demands, extra tools are now available to monitor, maintain, and setup virtual machines. The new virtual storage will also have faster 10GB network connections. The extra
network bandwidth will provide greater server availability, decrease latency, improve backups, and enhance our disaster recovery times. 

History and Current Status
In 2013 the County engaged in a significant storage area network upgrade, addressing present and future County data needs. Additional storage for County data and
additional storage for the County's new virtualization space was added. Our virtual production environment was in infancy. Since then, the environment has grown partly
because of how affordable, reliable, and innovative virtual spaces have become to County services.  

Operating and Maintenance Impact
The ongoing costs for this project are associated with a three (3) year maintenance/support agreement. There will be an investment in a two virtual storage devices. One
device for the Kennewick Justice Center and one device for the Prosser Courthouse. All hardware purchased will be enrolled into the Central Services Replacement Fund
Policy.

Virtualization Specific Storage
Countywide

Description and Scope
Since starting the virtualization environment in 2014, the County’s use of virtualization has grown to include faxing, printing, intranet, financial, and testing services that the
entire County benefits from. To help manage the future growth of virtual machines, this project is aimed at taking advantage of new virtual storage technology, making it
easier to manage and control the County’s virtual environment.

Purpose and Need



21
Return to TOC

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 332,000$                222,000$            22,000$              22,000$              22,000$              22,000$              22,000$              
-                              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 332,000$                222,000$            22,000$              22,000$              22,000$              22,000$              22,000$              

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 200,000                  200,000              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 132,000                  22,000                22,000                22,000                22,000                22,000                22,000                

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
TOTAL 332,000$                222,000$            22,000$              22,000$              22,000$              22,000$              22,000$              

PARTICIPATING FUNDS

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022

MunicipalCMS has hosted the Benton County website for a decade. Many County departments have expressed a need for increased functionality that MunicipalCMS does not
provide.  The County website plays a vital role in economic development and public relations and is a reflection of Benton County.  

History and Current Status
MunicipalCMS / Tower Innovations has provided Benton County with content management tools and web hosting services since the early 2000s. Early in the website
inception and design process, a color scheme and standardized font was selected to provide a uniformity to the overall site.  

Operating and Maintenance Impact
The ongoing costs for this project are associated to professional services needed to redesign and construct the County's website. Yearly support costs have been added to help
make sure the County has adequate website support.

County Website Redesign
Countywide

Description and Scope
As a communication platform for Benton County citizens, the County website must be able to provide innovative e-government services to the community, including fully
functional mobile device formatting. MunicipalCMS provides Benton County a cost efficient solution but it is time to reassess our needs and requirements, exploring
alternative solutions to make sure the County can keep up with future public needs.

Purpose and Need



22
Return to TOC

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 1,000,000$             1,000,000$         -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
3/10TH OF 1% CRIMINAL JUSTICE TAX 800,000                  800,000              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 1,800,000$             1,800,000$         -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES 20,000$                  20,000$              -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 1,780,000               1,780,000           -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
TOTAL 1,800,000$             1,800,000$         -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

 Justice Center Renovation, 1st and 2nd Floors 
7122 W Okanogan Pl. Bldg. A, Kennewick, WA 99336

Description and Scope
This project involves renovating the offices of the Prosecuting Attorney, OPD, Mental Health Court, Administration, Executive Conference Room, and Information
Technology. Located on the 1st and 2nd floors of the Kennewick Justice Center. 

Purpose and Need
Due to increased staffing in recent years these departments have out grown their existing spaces, requiring expansion and relocation of these departments' office areas. Further
increases in staff may prove to be in the best interests of the county, thus requiring expansion of office space. The renovation would significantly improve the offices' current
effectiveness and efficiency, and would  permit further growth.

History and Current Status
With the passage of the 3/10th of 1% Public Safety Sales Tax, some departments have increased staffing and created programs to accommodate the growing need of criminal
justice and public safety departments. This increase puts department office spaces over capacity, thus requiring expansion and relocation of these departments. 

Operating and Maintenance Impact
Since a number of the offices already exist with a minimal amount of expansion into the unfinished space located on the 2nd floor of the Justice Center this, project may result
in a marginal increase in utility usage (power and HVAC more specifically). Operating and maintenance costs would be minimal.               

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET



23
Return to TOC

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 300,000$                -$                    -$                    300,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 300,000$                -$                    -$                    300,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 300,000                  -                      300,000              -                      -                      -                      
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
TOTAL 300,000$                -$                    -$                    300,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    

Restroom Remodel
Justice Center and Annex in Kennewick

Description and Scope
There are several restrooms in our facilities that need to be upgraded. These include: at the Justice Center, the Men's and Women's Public Restrooms for Superior Court, the
Men's and Women's Employee Restrooms for Superior Court Clerks; and at the Annex, the Men's and Women's Restroom. The Annex restrooms are used by both the public
and employees. 

Purpose and Need
These restrooms have served the public and employees well, but are past their prime. They are no longer attractive and reflect a poor image of the County and how we take
care of our facilities. This remodel goes beyond a coat of paint. It will include handicap accessibility, as well as new fixtures, floor and wall tile, divider walls, lights, paint,
mirrors and dispensers.  The estimated cost includes demolition and rework, along with taxes and permits.

History and Current Status
The restrooms in the Justice Center have been very well used since being built in 1984. There have been no improvements done to these since then, aside from routine
maintenance. The restrooms at the Annex appear to have been remodeled during the late 1970's, but are in need again. The remodel will bring these up to current standards
while making them more attractive and functional. 

Operating and Maintenance Impact
There will not be an impact to the operating budget on an ongoing basis. Paper supplies and cleaning services are provided by our Janitorial contractor. The construction
estimate is $50,000 per restroom.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET



24
Return to TOC

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 1,326,000$             1,326,000$         -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
PLANNING BUILDING SALE 224,000                  -                      224,000              -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 1,550,000$             1,326,000$         224,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES 110,000$                110,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 1,440,000               1,440,000           -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
TOTAL 1,550,000$             1,550,000$         -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

Old Engineering Building 
Prosser Ave., Prosser WA

Description and Scope
This project consists of the complete restoration of the Old Engineering Building. The building is approximately (5,000) sq. ft.  Restored into usable office space for the Planning 
Department as it once shared this space with the Engineering Department. This building is currently vacated due to heavy rain water damage from the roof and is no longer in 
service.

Purpose and Need
Once restored, the Planning Department can be relocated into the new office space, and the existing Planning Building can be sold, thus allowing funds to be used for 
reimbursement of the restoration. This would also allow for the Planning Department to be located at the Courthouse for easy access to the public and other County 
Departments.

History and Current Status
This building was built back in the late 1940's and was called the "Engineering Building" as the Benton County Public Works Department and Planning utilized this building 
until the late 1980's, when the Benton County Courthouse was remodeled. 

Operating and Maintenance Impact
Operation and Maintenance should stay about the same. Due to the costs would shift from the existing Planning building to the newly restored Engineering building. 

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET



25
Return to TOC

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 600,000$                100,000$            100,000$            100,000$            100,000$            100,000$            100,000$            
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 600,000$                100,000$            100,000$            100,000$            100,000$            100,000$            100,000$            

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 600,000                  100,000              100,000              100,000              100,000              100,000              100,000              

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
TOTAL 600,000$                100,000$            100,000$            100,000$            100,000$            100,000$            100,000$            

Benton County Facilities Carpet Replacement
Countywide

Description and Scope
The project consists of removing and installing approximately 160,000 Sq. Ft. of carpet within all Benton County Facilities. The dismantling, moving and reinstallation of
employee workstations will also be included in the scope of work. The carpet would be replaced in phases over the next six years. This would also allow the Facilities
Department  repaint the office space while it is unoccupied. 

Purpose and Need
A portion of the carpet within the county facilities has been in place for over thirty five years and has surpassed its life expectancy. It has been re-glued and repaired several
times over the years. It has reached the point of needing to be replaced. With the recent completion of three remodeling projects there are several offices with portions of new
and old carpet. 

History and Current Status
There is still carpet in the Benton County Courthouse that has been in place since in 1986. Every time the carpet is cleaned it lifts in several areas thus creating a tripping
Hazard. These areas have been re-glued several times over the years. Some areas have reached the point of not being repairable. Recently some of the office space has been
remodeled received new carpet.

Operating and Maintenance Impact
Replacing the carpet will remove several possible tripping hazards thus avoiding the possibility of incident claims and also save time on carpet repairs. The new carpet will be
more maintenance friendly as it will be in the form of 20in x 20in squares. Damaged areas will be able to be pulled up and replaced as needed without the need of professional
services from an outside vendor.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS



26
Return to TOC

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 150,000$                150,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 150,000$                150,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 150,000                  150,000              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
TOTAL 150,000$                150,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

Justice Center Parking Lots Repair
Justice Center in Kennewick

Description and Scope
The parking lots at the Benton County Justice Center in Kennewick vary in age between 8 and 32 years old. They have plenty of life left in them before needing to be replaced.
To prolong this life, the parking lots need some maintenance provided. This will include sealing of cracks in the pavements, seal coating of the surface, and repainting of all of
the lines, marking and crosswalks.

Purpose and Need
The parking lots at the Justice Center ae made of asphalt, which is a petroleum based product. Over time, this can deteriorate due to weather, water, freezing temperature and
oil or gas leaked onto it. The deterioration can be minimized by sealing the cracks and seal coating the asphalt. Part of the parking lot is 32 years old and in desperate need of
help.  All of the areas need cracks sealing and seal coating to extend the life of the lot.

History and Current Status

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

In 2002 and 2003, the Justice was expanded and a large area of parking was added. In 2008, the Health District building added another significant area. This, along with some
original parking lots from 1984, reflect the need of this upkeep. This project will encompass the entire Justice Center complex including the Coroner's Office, Maintenance
Shop, Health building and all the Courts and Jail parking areas.

Operating and Maintenance Impact

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS



 

 

Park Development Fund 

PARK DEVELOPMENT 

FUND is a cumulative re-

serve fund for the purpose 

of accumulating and ex-

pending said moneys for  

capital improvements with-

in Benton County parks 



27
Return to TOC

PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND 35,000$                  -$                    -$                    35,000$              -$                    -$                    -$                    
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 35,000$                  -$                    -$                    35,000$              -$                    -$                    -$                    

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES 2,000$                    -$                    -$                    2,000$                -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 30,000                    -                      -                      30,000                -                      -                      -                      
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) 3,000                      -                      -                      3,000                  -                      -                      -                      
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
TOTAL 35,000$                  -$                    -$                    35,000$              -$                    -$                    -$                    

Description and Scope
One major project is anticipated for Badger Mountain Centennial Preserve (BMP) during the planning period -- improvements to the Summit Road that connects Dallas Road
to the summit area along the west ridgeline. This road follows a utility easement and is used numerous times daily by vendors who need access to the summit, as well as for
park business.  Improvements would include choosing a formal route, grading in some areas, removal of large cobbles, and placement of suitable course gravel.

Purpose and Need

History and Current Status

Operating and Maintenance Impact

Badger Mountain Centennial Preserve
5305 East 210 Private Road, Richland

The existing track was never properly built as a road.  It bifurcates in several places, contributes to erosion, and is an eyesore.  There are several areas in the middle section that 
are nearly impassable for passenger vehicles, and in several places the cant of the track is less than ideal for vehicle travel of any kind.

Existing track continues to degrade.  Has been in place for many decades.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

The Department does not foresee any further maintenance for several years.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET



28
Return to TOC

PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND 75,000$                  75,000$              -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CURRENT EXPENSE (PARKS) 1,250                      -                      250                     250                     250                     250                     250                     

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 76,250$                  75,000$              250$                   250$                   250$                   250$                   250$                   

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES 2,000$                    2,000$                -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 70,000                    70,000                -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) 3,000                      3,000                  -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 1,250                      -                      250                     250                     250                     250                     250                     

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
TOTAL 76,250$                  75,000$              250$                   250$                   250$                   250$                   250$                   

Candy Mountain Preserve
70804 East 669 Private Road Northeast, West Richland

Description and Scope
The project calls for placement of a new parking lot at the base of Candy Mountain on property recently acquired by Benton County known as the "Candy Mountain Preserve"
(CMP). Exact location and dimensions have not yet been scoped. Will be a gravel lot, ringed by railroad tie type barriers in the style the County uses elsewhere in the park
system.  Tentative plans call for a lot with a capacity of around fifty (50) vehicles, plus space for a portable toilet.

Purpose and Need
With over two hundred thousand (200,000) visits per year to Badger Mountain, CMP is created to fulfill a public recreation need. The centerpiece of the park will be a trail
from the Dallas Road area to the summit (about 2 miles). There may be subsequent trails also. The parking lot will be the jump-off point onto that trail and the primary
staging area for whatever happens on the property.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

History and Current Status
CMP was created Spring 2016 after a long-term effort to purchase nearly two hundred (200) acres of property on Candy Mountain for the public park. The purpose of the
Preserve is to conserve habitat and open space, and to provide another venue for non-motorized recreation in Benton County (hike-bike-horse). The parking lot and
subsequent trail will be the first improvements to the new park.

Operating and Maintenance Impact
The County will need to refurbish the parking lot on about a 2-3-year cycle, based on conditions and need. This will include reworking the gravel, likely including a top-coat.
This work should be expected to cost $3-10k depending on extent... County will spray for weeds several times per season... County will maintain signs and traffic barriers as
needed.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS



29
Return to TOC

PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND 6,000$                    3,000$                3,000$                -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 6,000$                    3,000$                3,000$                -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 6,000                      3,000                  3,000                  -                      -                      -                      -                      
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
TOTAL 6,000$                    3,000$                3,000$                -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

Placement of a large entrance sign, and placement of two standard alert signs (one each direction) along the highway.

History and Current Status

Operating and Maintenance Impact

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

Horse Heaven Vista
100806 West Carter Road, Prosser

Description and Scope

Purpose and Need
There is no welcoming sign identifying the park, and no signs along the highway noticing that the park is upcoming.

There is not and has never been any such signage of either type.

Benton County would pay for the creation and installation of the highway signs, but after that they become the responsibility of the State.  The County would have to clean and 
refurbish the entrance sign as needed.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET



30
Return to TOC

PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND 140,000$                -$                    75,000$              50,000$              15,000$              -$                    -$                    
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 140,000$                -$                    75,000$              50,000$              15,000$              -$                    -$                    

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES 22,000$                  -$                    5,000$                2,000$                15,000$              -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 105,000                  -                      60,000                45,000                -                      -                      -                      
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) 13,000                    -                      10,000                3,000                  -                      -                      -                      
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
TOTAL 140,000$                -$                    75,000$              50,000$              15,000$              -$                    -$                    

Horn Rapids Park
115803 North State Route 225, Benton City

Description and Scope
There are three distinct projects for Horn Rapids Park:  1) Addition of a new shop; 2) Paving of the driveway to the office/maintenance area; and 3) Development of a new 
master plan for the park.

Purpose and Need
Shop: The current shop is undersized and inadequate to meet both workspace and storage needs. The new shop would double the usable space and upgrade electrical
systems. Driveway: Paving the driveway will assist with maintenance (erosion) and dust control. Master Plan: The park has not been master planned since the 1980s and
needs a fresh, comprehensive look.

History and Current Status
The park has existed since the 1960s, but serious development didn't begin until 1999. Much of the park's facilities and infrastructure were undersized from the start, and the
past fifteen (15) years have been spent addressing those deficiencies. The secured lay-down around the Shop has been renovated in recent years, but not the Shop itself, which
is the next priority.

Operating and Maintenance Impact
Maintaining the expanded shop will fall into the park caretaker's existing regular duties, as will keeping care of the driveway. The paved driveway is expected to require less
maintenance than the existing gravel, though it may need to be resealed and patched in places about every five (5) years or so, which will be a substantive capital costs when
those renovations do occur.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET



31
Return to TOC

UNDETERMINED FUNDING SOURCE 50,000$                  -$                    -$                    -$                    50,000$              -$                    -$                    
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 50,000$                  -$                    -$                    -$                    50,000$              -$                    -$                    

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES 1,000$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    1,000$                -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 45,000                    -                      -                      -                      45,000                -                      -                      
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) 4,000                      -                      -                      -                      4,000                  -                      -                      
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
TOTAL 50,000$                  -$                    -$                    -$                    50,000$              -$                    -$                    

Hover Park
252305 East Hover Road, Kennewick

Description and Scope
One major improvement is planned for Hover Park: a dedicated, purpose-built parking area at the end of Hover Road, lined with barriers, and able to easily accommodate
multiple horse trailers.  The gravel lot will measure approximately two hundred (200) feet by fifty (50) feet and will include appropriate vehicle access controls.

Purpose and Need
The parking situation at Hover is poor, with uneven ground, insufficient turning space, and no designated parking area. A secondary consequence of this is that without
parking and access control, people are left to drive all over the place, which degrades the park, and creates safety concerns with a railroad crossing and people getting
automobiles into areas where automobiles shouldn't be.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

History and Current Status
There has never been formal parking at Hover Park. It has been of interest to the County for many years, and the County's landlord -- the Army Corps of Engineers, who must
approve any such action -- is aware of the County's ideas in this area.

Operating and Maintenance Impact
The parking lot would have to be treated for weeds a couple of times each year, have the gravel base retreated every 3-5 years based on use/impacts, and signage and barriers
would need to be maintained.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS



32
Return to TOC

PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND 240,000$                115,000$            -$                    125,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 240,000$                115,000$            -$                    125,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES 10,000$                  5,000$                -$                    5,000$                -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 210,000                  100,000              -                      110,000              -                      -                      -                      
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) 20,000                    10,000                -                      10,000                -                      -                      -                      
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
TOTAL 240,000$                115,000$            -$                    125,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    

The Boat Launch is an aging facility at a location that presents a lot of environmental impacts. Its deterioration is continual and the facility will not be viable in its current state
for much longer. The restroom will be fifty (50) years old in 2019.  It is minimally functional but could use serious modernization for the next half-century.

Two Rivers Park
213316 East Finley Road, Kennewick

Description and Scope
There are two major capital projects for Two Rivers Park: Remodel of the Boat Launch, including replacement of all floating docks and elimination of unused piles…
Complete replacement of the main restroom at the central part of the park.

Purpose and Need

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

History and Current Status
The Boat Launch was constructed in the late 1980s and has been substantively renovated several times. While still functional, the floating docks are deteriorating and will
become a safety concern in the near future. The restroom was constructed in 1969, as was its septic tank and drain field. All remain functional, but are essentially at the end of
or even past their expected life.

Operating and Maintenance Impact
Restrooms require daily service that is part of the park caretaker's normal duties. Modern public restrooms are robustly constructed, but there will continue to be maintenance
for broken pipes, vandalism and other such things. The Boat Launch will require regular safety inspections and occasional clearing of debris that gathers on the up current
side.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS



 

 

Real Estate Excise Tax 
(R.E.E.T) Fund  

1/4 PERCENT REAL  

ESTATE EXCISE 

TAX is a fund to ac-

count for the revenues 

generated by a special 

1/4 of 1 percent excise 

tax levied on the sale of 

real property within the 

County. All projects 

must be included in the 

annual Benton County 

Comprehensive Land 

Use Plan before any 

spending is  approved. 



33
Return to TOC

REET 75,000$                  100,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 100,000$                100,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 75,000                    100,000              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
TOTAL 100,000$                100,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

HVAC Infrastructure
Fairgrounds:  1500 S. Oak Street, Kennewick, WA 99337

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

The swamp coolers that are located in Buildings one (1) and four (4) are in need of replacement as they are antiquated, parts are hard to find, and the service technology is
virtually non-existent. In the heat of the summer, with temperatures reaching as high as hundred and ten (110) degrees Fahrenheit, the swamp coolers have a difficult time
keeping the buildings cool, especially if the building has a lot of people in it. 

Description and Scope
Buildings one (1) and four (4) will receive brand new commercial air conditioning systems that will replace the antiquated swamp coolers. The new systems will be ducted,
which will allow air to be distributed around the building in a more efficient manner, thus cooling the room to the desired temperature. The new systems will also have a
programmable thermostat.

Purpose and Need

History and Current Status
Buildings one (1) and four (4) were constructed in the 1970's and minimal remodeling and updating have been done. Swamp coolers were installed because they were
considered more efficient than air conditioning units and well suited for climates where the air is hot and the humidity is low. However, these particular units have reached
the end of their life cycle as parts are extremely hard to find as well as a technician that is willing to work on them.

Operating and Maintenance Impact
Buildings one (1) and four (4) will see a reduction in their electricity bill because of the more efficient commercial air conditioning system that will be installed. Also, since the
new system will have a programmable thermostat, staff will be able to control the temperature for the specific dates and times of the event. No more worrying about clients
leaving the air conditioning on in an unoccupied Building.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS



34
Return to TOC

REET 50,000$                  50,000$              -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 50,000$                  50,000$              -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 50,000                    50,000                -                      -                      -                      -                      
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
TOTAL 50,000$                  50,000$              -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

Buildings 1 and 4 Improvement
Fairgrounds:  1500 S. Oak Street, Kennewick, WA 99337

Building one (1) requires interior walls, finished and painted, and upgraded lighting and electrical systems. Building four (4) requires interior walls, finished and painted, and
upgraded lighting and electrical systems. This will make both buildings more marketable for private and public events of all types.  

Description and Scope

2021-2022

These changes will make Buildings one (1) and four (4) much more marketable as there will be a finished interior for small weddings and quinceañeras. During 2011 both
buildings had two (2) twelve (12) foot doors and two (2) eight (8) foot garage style doors replaced which has decreased utility costs, secured the buildings and are much easier
to open and close.  Building four (4) has had the permanent stages removed and the double kitchen ceiling replaced.

History and Current Status
Buildings one (1) and four (4) were constructed in the 1970's and minimal remodeling and updating done. There have been continuous complaints from our clients about the
buildings' conditions. Due to this it has been difficult to charge our clients the fair market value to use these buildings. Building one (1) is 80' x 100' = 8,000 square feet with a
capacity of five-hundred (500) people and Building four (4) is 50' x 140' = 7,000 square feet with a capacity of four-hundred and sixty (460) people.

Operating and Maintenance Impact
The proposed projects for Building one (1) and Building four (4) deal with the buildings functionality (upgraded lighting and electrical) and aesthetics (finishing and painting
the interior walls), which have very little operating and maintenance impact. However, the remodel should make the buildings more marketable increasing revenue for Benton
County.

2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020

Purpose and Need

2019-2020



35
Return to TOC

REET 809,297$                809,297$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
VIT 809,298                  809,298              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 1,618,595$             1,618,595$         -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES 182,603$                182,603$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 1,435,992               1,435,992           -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
TOTAL 1,618,595$             1,618,595$         -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

Operating and Maintenance Impact

Remodel Of Buildings 2 and 3
Fairgrounds:  1500 S. Oak Street, Kennewick, WA 99337

Description and Scope

The buildings in their current state are aging and more resemble a warehouse than an event facility. Benton County also has need of a training and meeting facility as the
current facilities have inadequate space. With no hvac system, the current cooling system leaves the fairgrounds buildings hot and humid when temperatures are on the rise.
The remodel of Buildings two (2) and three (3) would not only allow the Fairgrounds to become more attractive in the rental market but would regularly be used for Benton
County training and other meetings saving the county travel and facility rental expenses as well.

History and Current Status
Buildings two (2) and three (3) are aging, unfinished metal buildings which are time consuming to maintain as well as being in need of upgraded heating and air. More
attractive interiors and upgraded systems would not only serve the fair but create a comfortable, attractive meeting space for a variety of events throughout the year and allow
for an increase in revenue for Benton County.

 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018

The project consists of remodeling Buildings two (2) and three (3) into more modern event facilities complete with heat and A/C upgrades, upgraded wall coverings, lighting
and flooring. Theses buildings could be used both by Benton County for training meetings and the Benton Franklin Fair as well as be more attractive rental facility for other
meetings, wedding receptions, conventions and company parties. 

Purpose and Need

The maintenance impact for the remodeled buildings would be very low for the first five years. Modern and more efficient plumbing and electrical fixtures and better
insulation would help keep operating costs lower than the other existing buildings. Fairgrounds staff would be responsible for general maintenance and the facility would be
cleaned by a Benton County Inmate Work Crew that is currently assigned to the fairgrounds.



36
Return to TOC

REET 60,000$                  60,000$              -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
 -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 60,000$                  60,000$              -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 60,000                    60,000                -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
TOTAL 60,000$                  60,000$              -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

The maintenance impact will be low due to automated irrigation systems and will require only mowing and minor landscape maintenance. Additional revenues will be
possible due to the creation of a park like area suitable for camping, family reunions and RV rallies as well as serving existing events such as Horse Racing, Creation Northwest
and the Benton Franklin Fair and Rodeo.

Fairgrounds:  1500 S. Oak Street, Kennewick, WA 99337

Description and Scope
The project will consist of installation of a pump system and underground sprinkler system in areas currently without water or vegetation. Trees and grass will then be
planted for dust control and additional camping areas which could create additional revenue for the Fairgrounds.

Purpose and Need

PARTICIPATING FUNDS

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

Irrigation Infrastructure

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022

Currently the Fairgrounds Horse Facility is largely undeveloped. Strong winds stir up dust clouds that are a hazard to patrons of the Fairgrounds and a nuisance to
surrounding neighborhoods. The installation of an irrigation system will help control dust and create a more esthetically pleasing area.

History and Current Status
The Fairgrounds Horse Facility is an aging portion of the Fairgrounds that has remained largely undeveloped. As the Tri-City area continues to grow, the Fairgrounds is
finding a need for additional areas for camping and parking. Currently the Fairgrounds is at maximum capacity for camping areas even with the addition of the new
campground created in 2015-2016.  

Operating and Maintenance Impact



37
Return to TOC

UNDETERMINED FUNDING SOURCE 475,000$                -$                    475,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 475,000$                -$                    -$                    475,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES 32,000$                  -$                    32,000$              -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 438,000                  -                      438,000              -                      -                      -                      
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) 5,000                      -                      5,000                  -                      -                      -                      
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
TOTAL 475,000$                -$                    -$                    475,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    

The existing horse arena restroom building is old and in considerable need of repair or replacement. Negative comments and complaints are frequent from those who use the
facility on a regular basis. The Fairgrounds is in need of a restroom facility that can adequately serve those who use the southern portion of the grounds. A larger and more
updated restroom would accommodate bigger crowds and would be an excellent selling point for those groups and individuals who are looking to use the Fairgrounds. A
newer restroom would also cut down considerably on maintenance costs.

Description and Scope
Development would consist of constructing a new restroom at the southern end of the Fairgrounds near the horse arena and horse barns. The new restrooms would be
approximately sixteen-hundred (1,600) square feet (40x40) and would contain both water closets and showers. This project would also consist of connecting the new restroom
to the City of Kennewick sewer line as well as the demolition of the existing restroom. This new restroom could possibly be used during the annual fair as well as by horsemen
and those using the nearby RV rental throughout the year.

Purpose and Need

Fairgrounds:  1500 S. Oak Street, Kennewick, WA 99337
Fairgrounds Restroom- South of the Rail

PROJECT BUDGET

History and Current Status
The current restrooms were constructed at an unknown time and are currently connected to a local septic/drain field system. It is currently not using the City's sewer for
service. The restrooms contain two water closets and urinals and two showers on men's side with comparable facilities for the women.

Operating and Maintenance Impact
The maintenance impact for this structure would be quite low for the first handful of years. Modern and more efficient plumbing and electrical fixtures as well as better
insulation would help reduce the operating costs compared to the existing restrooms, per square foot. Fairgrounds staff would be responsible for general maintained and the
facility would be cleaned by the Benton County Imamate Work Crew that is currently assigned to the Fairgrounds.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022



Rural Capital Fund

RURAL CAPITAL FUND: is a fund setup to hold the .09 sales tax refund from State of 
Washington (RCW 82.14.370) for Economic Development Purposes. The funds are to be 
divided up between the Ports, Cities, and County. 



38
Return to TOC

RURAL CAPITAL FUND 850,000$                75,000$              775,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 850,000$                75,000$              775,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

PRELIMINARY  ENGINEERING  50,000$                  50,000$              -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
RIGHT OF WAY 25,000                    25,000                -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICE COST 775,000                  -                      775,000              -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 850,000$                75,000$              775,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

Adair Road
End of County Road to Christensen (1.1 Miles)

Description and Scope
Adair Road is a proposed new 1.1-mile, paved road segment This segment of roadway would connect the existing Adair Road to Christensen Road south of Kennewick,
Washington. 

Purpose and Need
This new road segment will create a throughway for industrial development along the west side of the freeway (I-82). Similar development has already occurred on the east
side of I-82. Development is consistent with local planning and zoning in the area. Industrial development in this area would significantly increase assessed value of the
property which leads to higher revenues for the County.  Industrial development will also create numerous new jobs in the area.

History and Current Status
The property along the proposed roadway is currently undeveloped. On the east side of the freeway, industrial development has already occurred. This project is in the
preliminary planning phase.

Operating and Maintenance Impact
Once completed, this segment of Adair Road will add 1.1 miles of paved road to the Benton County road system. Maintenance will occur on the regularly scheduled interval of
that maintenance district.

PARTICIPATING FUNDS

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022



39
Return to TOC

RURAL CAPITAL FUND 950,000$                -$                    105,000$            845,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 950,000$                -$                    105,000$            845,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    

PRELIMINARY  ENGINEERING  60,000$                  -$                    60,000$              -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
RIGHT OF WAY 45,000                    -                      45,000                -                      -                      -                      -                      
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICE COST 845,000                  -                      -                      845,000              -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 950,000$                -$                    105,000$            845,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    

Belmont Road
City Limits to Kennedy (1.2 Miles)

Description and Scope
Belmont Road is a proposed new 1.2-mile, paved road segment. This segment of roadway would connect the existing Belmont Road to Kennedy Road near the city limits of
West Richland Washington. 

Purpose and Need
This new road segment will create a throughway for commercial development between Keene and Kennedy Road. Development is consistent with local planning and zoning
in the area and is anticipated to rapidly increase with the construction of the Red Mountain interchange.

History and Current Status
Development has occurred around the area of this proposal, but not in the immediate vicinity. It is expected that more development will occur once the road is in place,
especially with the construction of the Red Mountain interchange. This project is in the preliminary planning phase.

Operating and Maintenance Impact
Once completed, this segment of Belmont Road will add 1.2 miles of paved, all-weather road to the Benton County road system. Maintenance will occur on the regularly
scheduled interval of that maintenance district.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022



Solid Waste Fund

SOLID WASTE 
FUND - is established 
to provide waste 
disposal information 
and assistance to the 
residents of Benton 
County



40
Return to TOC

COORDINATED PREVENTION GRANT '15-'17 100,000$                 100,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
BENTON COUNTY SOLID WASTE FUND 660,000                  410,000              50,000                50,000                50,000                50,000                50,000                
COORDINATED PREVENTION GRANT '17-'23 1,740,000                150,000              150,000              150,000              150,000              150,000              150,000              

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 1,660,000$              660,000$            200,000$            200,000$            200,000$            200,000$            200,000$            

PRELIMINARY  ENGINEERING  18,000$                  18,000$              -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICE COST 442,000                  442,000              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 1,200,000                200,000              200,000              200,000              200,000              200,000              200,000              

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
TOTAL 1,660,000$              660,000$            200,000$            200,000$            200,000$            200,000$            200,000$            

Benton County has been without a MRW facility since the previous one at the Horn Rapids landfill site was lost to a fire in 2010. Currently, the County meets its MRW needs
through household hazardous waste events. However, in order to provide more regular service, the County requires a facility to meet residents' needs. This is also a goal of the
Benton County Solid Waste and Moderate Risk Waste Plan.

Moderate Risk Waste Facility
1709 S Ely Street, Kennewick

Description and Scope
This project is for the design and construction of a retrofit to an existing building in order to provide moderate risk waste (MRW) service for the residents of Benton County. The
retrofitted area will be approximately one thousand nine hundred (1,900) square feet and will be used to store collected wastes currently dropped off by residents at household
hazardous waste events.

Purpose and Need

PROJECT BUDGET

History and Current Status
The original MRW facility at the Horn Rapids landfill was lost to fire in 2010. Benton County residents have been able to discard their MRW at household hazardous waste events.
In 2015, the Benton County Road Department had a feasibility study completed exploring the viability of using an existing County maintenance shop building as a MRW facility.
The project is currently in the design stage.

Operating and Maintenance Impact
This facility will be operated and maintained through a combination of the Benton County solid waste fund and Washington State coordinated prevention grants. The fund draws
revenue from existing solid waste taxes and waste handler fees.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022



1/10% Criminal Justice Fund 

1/10% CRIMINAL 

JUSTICE FUND – 

is a fund established 

by sales tax revenue 

for the purpose of 

construction, mainte-

nance, and operation 

of the adult and juve-

nile Benton County 

jails.  



41
Return to TOC

1/10th CRIMINAL JUSTICE FUND 5,700,000$             5,700,000$         -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 5,700,000$             5,700,000$         -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES -$                        150,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 5,550,000               5,550,000           -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
TOTAL 5,700,000$             5,700,000$         -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

Benton County Mental Health Wing
Benton County Jail: 7122 W. Okanogan Pl. Bldg. B, Kennewick, WA 99336

Description and Scope
Design and construct a detention area to properly house inmates with mental health needs. This may be either an addition to the current jail or a remodel of a current housing
area within the detention facility. The area must be designed to allow for continuous observation while meeting the National Institute of Corrections (NIC) Standards.

Purpose and Need
The current jail was not designed to house the volume of mental health inmates that currently occupy the facility. Failure to be able to properly house these inmates proposes a
direct danger to both the corrections staff and inmate. The benefits of having the proper housing would allow the inmate to be closely monitored and to provide the support to
their special needs.

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022

History and Current Status
Currently, the Benton County Jail does not have an adequate area to house inmates that require continuous watch due to mental illness and there is fear of those individuals
potentially harming themselves or others. Therefore, these individuals are held in the booking section so the can be closely watched. This arrangement puts additional stress on
staff and detainees due to the lack of proper requirements needed to house such inmates.

Operating and Maintenance Impact
With an adequate facility, operation and maintenance costs would be reduced due to constant observation and less damage to the facility. It will allow officers to concentrate
on specific tasks leading to a smoother operation with less interruptions. Most of the infrastructure within the facility can support an addition or a remodel.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS



42
Return to TOC

1/10th CRIMINAL JUSTICE FUND 100,000$                100,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 100,000$                100,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 100,000                  100,000              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
TOTAL 100,000$                100,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

PROJECT BUDGET

Benton County Jail Booking Remodel and Upgrade
Benton County Jail: 7122 W. Okanogan Pl. Bldg. B, Kennewick, WA 99336

Description and Scope
This booking area remodel will allow for a complete rebuild of booking workstations, interview room, and medical area, which will improve overall efficiency of the inmate
booking process and the safety of staff members assigned to this area of the jail. The project includes elevated workstations with built-in counter space for electronics,
renovating a restroom into an interview room, and installing a safety door on the medical exam room within the booking area.

2019-2020 2021-2022

Purpose and Need

History and Current Status
The current configuration and furniture has been in place since the facility opened in April 2003. The area is occupied and used on a 24/7 basis and furniture is now needing to
be replaced. The addition of a interview room and more secure medical area is identified as a significant need, along with the re-design of the booking workstations.

The remodel focus is to remove the current broken furniture and design the booking area with efficiency and safety in mind. The current configuration lacks optimal safety and
functioning equipment. By elevating and partially isolating the booking workstations, it will add a degree of safety to the staff members assigned to these locations.

Operating and Maintenance Impact
The booking area currently requires very little (if any) maintenance and repair. The operations impact will be controlled during construction and once completed will provide a
streamlined booking process that is designed with employee safety in mind. After the project is complete, it will require virtually no "upkeep" or scheduled maintenance to
maintain.

PARTICIPATING FUNDS

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022



43
Return to TOC

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 1,202,310$             1,202,310$         -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
1/10th CRIMINAL JUSTICE FUND 1,469,490               1,469,490           -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 2,671,800$             2,671,800$         -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES 25,000$                  25,000$              -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 2,646,800               2,646,800           -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
TOTAL 2,671,800$             2,671,800$         -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

Security Control System Replacement
Benton County Jail: 7122 W. Okanogan Pl. Bldg. B, Kennewick, WA 99336

Description and Scope
Replace the existing OPTO22 Control System with a new Programmable Logic Controller (PLC); add four (4) new touch screens; replace all intercom head-end with new digital
intercom system; replace existing Access Control System; replace all eighty-three (83) existing cameras and adding sixty-seven (67) new HD IP 1080p cameras for a total of one-
hundred and fifty (150) cameras for video management and recording; replace SpectraLink wireless phone system with ten (10) new hand-held controllers.

Purpose and Need

PROJECT BUDGET

History and Current Status
Users of the existing electronic security system are experiencing system failures and delays. The opening of a door or responding to an alarm input from field devices
sometimes takes several seconds (5s-10s), with the industry standard being (0.5s). There are numerous reports of the system failure due to "server freezing" with such system
failures compromising safety and security of the staff, inmates, and the public that uses the facility.

Operating and Maintenance Impact
The overall operating and maintenance should reduce dramatically from the current issues the jail is experiencing with the OPTO22 Control System. The security control
system must meet high reliable levels with minimum maintenance requirements. Replacing all of the systems mentioned above will minimize future system failures and
provide a safe and secure facility.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022

The existing system functionality and operation does not meet today's industry standards. The operations of a modern detention facility requires functionality, flexibility and
reliability that will support 24/7 operations. Functionality supports movement and monitoring for security, flexibility allows efficient use of staff, and reliability minimizes the
impact of system failures.



44
Return to TOC

1/10th CRIMINAL JUSTICE FUND 500,000$                500,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 500,000$                500,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 500,000                  500,000              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
TOTAL 500,000$                500,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

Superior Court Inmate Elevators
7122 W Okanogan Pl. Bldg. A, Kennewick, WA 99336

Description and Scope
There are two elevators in the Superior Court section of the building that transport inmates and officers to and from the Jail that are in need of replacement. These elevators
have been used on a daily basis by Court Officer staff and inmates since 1984. The proposal is to replacing the hydraulic lifting system, all elevator shaft wiring and cables,
and a new door operator motor assembly and a new Main Car Operating Panel.

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022

Purpose and Need
The reason behind this upgrade is that these two elevators have exceeded their life expectancy and replacement parts are no longer available. On several occasions, a
component has failed, and new parts were not available. Elevator technicians were able to obtain parts from two abandoned elevators on site. Depending on which part fails
next, the elevator will be taken out of service.  This will greatly impact operation of the Courts.

History and Current Status
These elevators were installed in 1984 when the Benton County Justice Center was constructed. The elevators are used multiple times a day, every week day. Overall they
have been very good elevators with minimal trouble. Since they were discontinued by the manufacturer, all available parts have been used. In recent years, failures have
taken the elevators out of service for several days while replacement parts were researched.

Operating and Maintenance Impact
Once upgraded, there will be little change to the operating budget and maintenance budget. There are continued, required inspections by the State inspector and regular
preventative maintenance service performed by the elevator service contractor. Estimate provide by KONE Elevator is for equipment purchase and installation. Additional
funds are required for work outside of their scope and any code improvements that must be made.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS



45
Return to TOC

UNDETERMINED FUNDING SOURCE 10,184,420$           -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    10,184,420$       
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 10,184,420$           -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    10,184,420$       

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES 520,451$                -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    520,451$            
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 8,854,969               -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      8,854,969           
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) 809,000                  -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      809,000              
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
TOTAL 10,184,420$           -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    10,184,420$       

PARTICIPATING FUNDS

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022

The current building's operation and functionality does not meet the needs of Juvenile Justice Staff and clients. Juvenile Justice Center is in need of upgrades to the site, 
lighting, communications, and security. 

History and Current Status
The original Benton-Franklin Counties Juvenile Justice Center (BFJJC) was constructed in 1979 on its current six-acre site, and included an Administration Wing with one 
courtroom as well as a Detention Wing with a multi-purpose gymnasium, detention cells, visitation rooms, classrooms and associated support spaces. The Administration 
portion of the building is in need of updating to meet the needs of staff and visitors to BFJJC.

Operating and Maintenance Impact

Juvenile Detention - Administration Building
5606 W. Canal Drive, Suite 106, Kennewick, WA 99336

Description and Scope
This project will demolish the entire existing Administrative / Courts wing and construct a new 38,000 sf. 2-story replacement wing. Temporary space will be required during
construction. Once completed, the building will have more space for support staff/services, administration, classrooms, courtrooms, and judicial support services as well as
updated security, communications, and lighting.

Purpose and Need



 

 

Jail Depreciation Reserve Fund 

JAIL DEPRECIATION RESERVE 

In 1988, Benton County established a 

Jail    Depreciation Fund for the pur-

pose of     holding monies collected 

from the cities and county for depre-

ciation factors on the     Benton 

County Jail. By establishing and 

funding the Jail Depreciation Fund 

through the prisoner bed day rate, 

Benton County hopes to limit the fi-

nancial impact to the General Fund 

should a catastrophic failure occur in 

the jail. Jail Depreciation fund shall 

also be used to replace equipment vi-

tal to jail  operations, which usually 

are expensive in nature. 



46
Return to TOC

JAIL DEPRECIATION RESERVE FUND 250,000$                250,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 250,000$                250,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 250,000                  250,000              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
TOTAL 250,000$                250,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

The I-CON system consists of timers, valves and actuators that will control showers, sinks and toilets. Valves can be placed up to sixty (60) feet away, making maintenance
easier. I-CON can control the number of times a toilet is flushed. I-Con uses touch sensors instead of push-button to operate. This will also allow remote flush buttons to be
placed in plumbing chases to allow officers to flush a toilet without entering a cell.

Jail Plumbing I-CON System Installation
Benton County Jail: 7122 W. Okanogan Pl. Bldg. B, Kennewick, WA 99336

Description and Scope
The Benton County Jail has approximately two-hundred and fifty-three (253) toilets and sinks and sixty-four (64) showers. Facilities would like to install the I-CON electronic
plumbing control system. This will improve maintenance needs, lower costs and decrease the amount of water that is wasted. The I-CON system also allows for remote
flushing capabilities and has less moving parts than traditional controls.  This system would be installed by I-CON to maximize the warranty.

Purpose and Need

History and Current Status
An inmate can flush a blanket or other object down the toilet by repeatedly flushing over a long period of time. I-CON will allow us to control the amount of flushes per time
period. This will also decrease the time spent on maintenance and the number of parts that are replaced. Officers must enter a cell to flush a toilet if the inmate refuses to do
so.  This system will allow officers to flush the toilet from inside the plumbing chase, increasing officer safety.

Operating and Maintenance Impact
The Facilities Department purchases approximately $10,000 per year in replacement plumbing parts. This will be drastically reduced as the I-CON system uses it's own special
valves. These valves will not have the wear and tear that the current valves do. Also, there will be a great savings in water, which will save money. This will save many hours
of labor, as there have been at least 274 work orders for sinks in the last 12 months.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET



47
Return to TOC

UNDETERMINED FUNDING SOURCE 1,000,000$             500,000$            500,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 1,000,000$             500,000$            500,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 1,000,000               500,000              500,000              -                      -                      -                      -                      
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
TOTAL 1,000,000$             500,000$            500,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

The purpose of this project is to prolong the life of the West Wing and help eliminate water damage to the first floor offices. There have been many water leaks over the years
that have damaged walls, ceiling, equipment and carpeting. These leaks have also created a feeling of poor environmental quality and cleanliness. This project will help to
minimize any water from reaching the first floor offices and will help create a more pleasant work area.

West Wing Jail Plumbing Overhaul
Benton County Jail: 7122 W. Okanogan Pl. Bldg. B, Kennewick, WA 99336

Description and Scope
In 1984, Benton County built the Justice Center which included the Jail. The new Jail was built in 2003 and the old Jail is now referred to as the West Wing. This West Wing
has not had any major plumbing enhancements made in thirty-two (32) years. This plan would upgrade, replace or refurbish as much of the plumbing components as
possible.  This will prolong the life of the West Wing and help prevent water damage to the Sheriff's Office below.   

Purpose and Need

PROJECT BUDGET

History and Current Status
Since 1984, there have been no major upgrades to the West Wing plumbing systems. This includes hot water, hot water returns, cold water, roof and floor drains, trap primers,
sewer drains and vents. This project will upgrade as much of this plumbing system as feasible. This will also include work to stop water that has leaked or flooded from
penetrating the floor and reaching the first floor where the Sheriff's Office is located.

Operating and Maintenance Impact
Performing this upgrade will save time and money. The Facilities Department has spent many hours cleaning up and repairing damaged walls, ceilings, floors, furniture and
other equipment. Money will be saved due to overtime callouts and cleanup costs. This will also create a healthier, more conducive work environment for the Sheriff's Office
staff and visitors.  

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022



County Road Fund 

County Road Fund is created in each  County of the State per the RCW 36.82.010. County Road 

Funds may be  used for the construction, alteration, repair, improvement, or maintenance of  

county roads and bridges, as well as acquiring, operating,  and  maintaining of  machinery,  

equipment,   quarries, and for the cost of  establishing county roads, acquiring rights - of- way       

therefore, and expenses for the operation of the county engineering office.   



48
Return to TOC

ROAD FUND 800,000$                100,000$            700,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 800,000$                100,000$            700,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES -$                        100,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS -                          -                      700,000              -                      -                      -                      -                      
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
TOTAL 800,000$                100,000$            700,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

The new facility is proposed to be built on the property that currently serves the Benton County Kennewick road shop. Therefore, the increase in maintenance would be only
for the new structure itself. Operating costs are anticipated to decrease as staff travel time is reduced. Operating costs will be from the Benton County road fund.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

Road Department Kennewick Administrative Office
102808 Wiser Parkway, Kennewick

Description and Scope
This project is for the design and construction of a new, five thousand five hundred (5,500) square foot administrative office for the Benton County Road Department.
Additional office space may be added for other departments or agencies, as needed. The office would be located on existing Benton County Road Department property.

Purpose and Need
In order to provide more accessible and convenient service to the majority of residents in Benton County, and in order to be more proximate to the primary location of
development in Benton County, an administrative building is needed. Currently, the administration of the Department is located completely separate of either maintenance
division.  Locating the new facility on the existing road maintenance site in Kennewick would provide for greater oversight of that portion of the road departments operations. 

History and Current Status
The Benton County Road Department is currently located in the courthouse in Prosser, Washington. This places obstacles for residents and developers who wish to visit the
office, as it is distant from the main population and development center in Benton County. It also increases staff time expended to inspect development, much of which is in
the same area, due to lengthy travel times. The department would maintain some presence in the courthouse when the primary office is relocated.

Operating and Maintenance Impact



49
Return to TOC

RURAL ARTERIAL PROGRAM (CRAB) 3,020,000$             397,000$            2,623,000$         -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CRIMP FUND 336,000                  336,000              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 3,356,000$             733,000$            2,623,000$         -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

PRELIMINARY  ENGINEERING  -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICE COST 3,356,000               733,000              2,623,000           -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 3,356,000$             733,000$            2,623,000$         -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

Completion of the Nine Canyon Road project is a top priority for Benton County. The project is predominately funded by a grant from the County Road Administration Board
(CRAB) though their Rural Arterial Program. The remaining funds come from the County's County Road Improvement Matching Program (CRIMP). Survey and design for
the project began in January 2016 and should be complete by the end of summer 2016. Preliminary right of way discussions have occurred with land owners and all seem to be
agreeable to the proposed alignment. Phase One (1) & Two (2) were completed in 2015 & 2016 for one million seven hundred thousand dollars ($1,700,000.00).

Operating and Maintenance Impact
This portion of Nine Canyon Road is a gravel road and is a high-maintenance road during harvest season and is in exceptionally poor condition. Existing maintenance costs
are also exceptionally high. The seasonal damage experienced on this road is unacceptable and rebuilding the road will resolve the high maintenance cost. The improvement
will also increase the safety of the roadway.  

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

Nine Canyon Road is a major farm-to-market route connecting the southeast portion of Benton County to State Route 397. This is the final phase of a project to replace eight (8)
miles of winding, narrow, gravel road with a modern transportation facility. Safety is improved by bringing the horizontal and vertical alignments up to current standards
and widening and paving the road surface.  Modern signing, striping and other safety features will be added along with designated access points for adjoining property. 

Purpose and Need
Nine Canyon Road is a winding, hilly, gravel road. It is designated a T-3 freight corridor moving up to four (4) million tons of freight annually. During inclement weather the
road can be difficult to travel or be shut down completely. This is the final phase in a three-phase project to improve eight (8) miles of this freight corridor to an all-weather
road standard allowing for unrestricted travel all year around.

History and Current Status

Description and Scope

Nine Canyon Road (Phase III) - CE 1960
Coffin Road to Beck Road (3.0 miles)



50
Return to TOC

CRIMP FUNDS 1,000,000$             1,000,000$         -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 1,000,000$             1,000,000$         -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

PRELIMINARY  ENGINEERING  -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICE COST 1,000,000               1,000,000           -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 1,000,000$             1,000,000$         -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

History and Current Status
Tyrell Road is designated a T-3 freight route, moving up to four million (4,000,000) tons of freight annually. In recent years, irrigation water was added to the surrounding
farmland, which has resulted in a significant increase in crop production and the weight of the vehicles using the roadway. The first phase of this project was completed in
spring of 2016.  Surveying work and design of the roadway was completed in summer of 2016. Phase one (1) was completed in 2016 for one million dollars ($1,000,000)

Operating and Maintenance Impact
Tryell road has high maintenance costs compared to other gravel roads in the area due to the large volume of trucks using it during the farming season. Improving the
roadway will reduce overall maintenance costs and provide a better operating experience for the road users and surrounding land owners.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

Tyrell Road - Phase II
Travis Road to End of Pavement (2 miles)

Description and Scope
Tyrell Road is a four (4) mile gravel farm-to-market route connecting Travis Road to Plymouth Road. Classified as a rural minor collector, the road sees significant truck traffic
during the farming season as adjoining farms use it to access Plymouth Road. This project is the final phase of a two-phase project to improve the substandard gravel road to
an all weather paved road.  

Purpose and Need
The existing road has a substandard vertical alignment which creates poor sight distances in some areas. The gravel surface is not sufficient for the large truck volumes seen
during the farming season and requires constant maintenance. Improving the road to an all-weather paved roadway will improve safety, ensure there are no travel restrictions
during inclement weather, and reduce overall maintenance costs.  



51
Return to TOC

CRIMP FUND 1,400,000$             1,400,000$         -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
ROAD FUND -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 1,400,000$             1,400,000$         -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

PRELIMINARY  ENGINEERING  -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICE COST 1,400,000               1,400,000           -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 1,400,000$             1,400,000$         -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

History and Current Status
Sellards Road is a T-3 truck route, which sees up to four million (4,000,000) tons of freight moved on it annually, making it a vital shipping route in Benton County. The first
phase of Sellards Road improvement was completed in 2016 (SR 221 to the BPA Power Lines). A topographical survey has been completed, though it needs to be updated.
Upon completion of the update, right-of-way needs, if any, can be determined. Construction for the second phase is anticipated to be started in 2017 or 2018. Upon completion,
the final phase can be initiated (tentatively planned for 2019). Phase one (1) was completed in 2016 for one million four hundred eighty thousand dollars ($1,480,000).

Operating and Maintenance Impact
The improvement of Sellards Road will reduce operating and maintenance costs by reducing the routine patching and other remedial efforts that are currently undertaken
several times a year. It will also reduce the likelihood of road closures, thus reducing maintenance on detour routes, improving user benefit, and reducing the impact on
adjacent property owners.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

Sellards Road - Phase II
2 Miles East of SR 221 to 1/2 mile east of Tyacke Road (2.5 miles)

Description and Scope
Sellards Road is a farm-to-market road running over twenty-three (23) miles through Benton County. Classified as a rural major collector, Sellards Road experiences extensive
farm traffic, including a large number of trucks during harvest season. This project is the second of three projects that will improve seven (7) miles of extensively used roadway
in order to reduce maintenance costs and improve utility for traffic.

Purpose and Need
A seven (7) mile section of Sellards Road from SR 221 to Travis Road is disintegrating and requires increasing annual maintenance in order to maintain it in serviceable
condition. The three phases that are being completed aim at reducing maintenance costs and closures for this road via reconstruction. This project will complete the second
phase two and one half (2.5) miles.



52
Return to TOC

CRIMP FUND 1,400,000$             -$                    -$                    1,400,000$         -$                    -$                    -$                    
ROAD FUND 75,000                    75,000                -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 1,475,000$             75,000$              -$                    1,400,000$         -$                    -$                    -$                    

PRELIMINARY  ENGINEERING  75,000$                  75,000$              -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICE COST 1,400,000               -                      -                      1,400,000           -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 1,475,000$             75,000$              -$                    1,400,000$         -$                    -$                    -$                    

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

History and Current Status

Sellards Road is a T-3 truck route, which sees up to four million (4,000,000) tons of freight moved on it annually, making it a vital shipping route in Benton County. The first
phase of Sellards Road improvements was completed in 2016 and the second is anticipated to be completed in 2017-2018. A topographical survey has been completed, though
it needs to be updated.  Upon completion of the update, right-of-way needs, if any, can be determined.  Construction for this final phase is tentatively planned for 2019. 

Operating and Maintenance Impact
The improvement of Sellards Road will reduce operating and maintenance costs by reducing the routine patching and other remedial efforts that are currently undertaken
several times a year. It will also reduce the likelihood of road closures, thus reducing maintenance on detour routes, improving user benefit, and reducing the impact on
adjacent property owners.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

Sellards Road - Phases III
1/2 mile East of Tyacke to Travis (2.5 miles)

Description and Scope
Sellards Road is a farm-to-market road running over twenty-three (23) miles through Benton County. Classified as a rural major collector, Sellards Road experiences extensive
farm traffic, including a large number of trucks during harvest season. This project is the third of three projects that will improve seven (7) miles of extensively used roadway
in order to reduce maintenance costs and improve utility for traffic.

Purpose and Need
A seven (7) mile section of Sellards Road from SR 221 to Travis Road is disintegrating and requires increasing annual maintenance in order to maintain it in serviceable
condition. The three phases that are being completed aim at reducing maintenance costs and closures for this road via reconstruction. This project will complete the third and
final phase  two and one half (2.5) miles.



53
Return to TOC

RURAL ARTERIAL PROGRAM (CRAB) 3,528,000$             -$                    -$                    -$                    1,764,000$         -$                    1,764,000$         
ROAD FUND 292,000                  50,000                50,000                -                      96,000                -                      96,000                

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 3,820,000$             50,000$              50,000$              -$                    1,860,000$         -$                    1,860,000$         

PRELIMINARY  ENGINEERING  100,000$                50,000$              50,000$              -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICE COST 1,860,000               -                      -                      -                      1,860,000           -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 1,960,000$             50,000$              50,000$              -$                    1,860,000$         -$                    -$                    

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

History and Current Status
Bert James Road is a T-3 route, seeing up to four million tons of freight per year. Anticipating the need for reconstruction, the County has already surveyed the corridor,
procured much of the right-of-way needed for construction, and designed plans. A small amount of right-of-way still needs to be procured.

Operating and Maintenance Impact
Completion of this project will reduce the frequency of which it must be maintained, including the frequency of which it will be chip sealed. Maintenance and operating costs
will thus be reduced. Road closures will also be reduced, allowing better realization of the route for users and adjacent property owners.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

Bert James Road - CE 1774
Williamson to SR 221 (2.0 miles)

Description and Scope
Bert James Road is a rural minor collector running for over ten miles in Benton County. Providing a freight shortcut to SR 221, Bert James Road experiences extensive truck
traffic during harvest season. The proposed project would reconstruct two (2) miles of the existing roadway in order to improve its width and vertical alignments so that it
might better function in this capacity.

Purpose and Need
The existing segment of Bert James Road has substandard width and vertical alignment, which can make it difficult to navigate for trucks hauling freight. It also experiences
occasional flooding. Reconstruction will see this road section rebuilt with adequate drainage, an all-weather driving surface, and widths and alignments in keeping with its
usage as a freight route.



54
Return to TOC

RURAL ARTERIAL PROGRAM (CRAB) 1,890,000$             -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    1,890,000$         
ROAD FUND 210,000                  50,000                -                      -                      -                      -                      160,000              

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 2,100,000$             50,000$              -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    2,050,000$         

PRELIMINARY  ENGINEERING  50,000$                  50,000$              -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICE COST 2,050,000               -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      2,050,000           

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 2,100,000$             50,000$              -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    2,050,000$         

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

History and Current Status
Bert James Road is a T-3 route, seeing up to four million tons of freight per year. Anticipating the need for reconstruction, the County has already surveyed the corridor,
procured much of the right-of-way needed for construction, and designed plans. A small amount of right-of-way still needs to be procured.

Operating and Maintenance Impact
Completion of this project will reduce the frequency of which it must be maintained, including the frequency of which it will be chip sealed. Maintenance and operating costs
will thus be reduced. Road closures will also be reduced, allowing better realization of the route for users and adjacent property owners.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

Bert James Road - CE 1774
Sellards Road to Williamson (2.0 miles)

Description and Scope
Bert James Road is a rural minor collector running for over ten miles in Benton County. Providing a freight shortcut to SR 221, Bert James Road experiences extensive truck
traffic during harvest season. The proposed project would reconstruct two (2) miles of the existing roadway in order to improve its width and vertical alignments so that it
might better function in this capacity.

Purpose and Need
The existing segment of Bert James Road has substandard width and vertical alignment , which can make it difficult to navigate for trucks hauling freight. It also experiences
occasional flooding. Reconstruction will see this road section rebuilt with adequate drainage, an all-weather driving surface, and widths and alignments in keeping with its
usage as a freight route.



55
Return to TOC

ROAD FUND 200,000$                200,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 200,000$                200,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

PRELIMINARY  ENGINEERING  -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICE COST 200,000                  200,000              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 200,000$                200,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

History and Current Status
Rachel Road has historically received BST on the typical seven-year cycle. This maintenance, which is the prescribed lifespan of BST, has proven ineffective for the roadway. It
is believed that a hot-mix asphalt overlay will correct the surface issues seen by this road.

Operating and Maintenance Impact
Rachel Road will not be given BST maintenance this cycle, saving the cost of what is estimated to be an inadequate treatment. Hot-mix asphalt overlays typically can be given
subsequent BST as maintenance, with the standard being fifteen (15) years after initial overlay Rachel Road would be returned to the BST schedule.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

Rachel Road
Leslie to Klye (0.6 Miles)

Description and Scope
Rachel Road is an urban local access road that runs about one and a half (1.5) miles in Benton County, but which is heavily used due to the surrounding urbanized area. This
segment of Rachel Road is failing, and the proposed project would provide a hot-mix asphalt overlay for point six (0.6) miles of roadway.

Purpose and Need
Rachel Road sees extensive use due to its proximity to urban development. The road has deteriorated at a rate faster than would be expected for its maintenance regime. As
such, the Road Department has removed Rachel Road from the bituminous surface treatment (BST, or "chip seal") maintenance schedule and recommended the proposed
overlay.



56
Return to TOC

ROAD FUND 225,000$                -$                    225,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 225,000$                -$                    225,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

PRELIMINARY  ENGINEERING  -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICE COST 225,000                  -                      225,000              -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 225,000$                -$                    225,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

History and Current Status
Rachel Road has historically received BST on the typical seven (7) year cycle. This maintenance, which is the prescribed lifespan of BST, has proven ineffective for the roadway.
It is believed that a hot-mix asphalt overlay will correct the surface issues seen by this road.

Operating and Maintenance Impact
Rachel Road will not be given BST maintenance this cycle, saving the cost of what is estimated to be an inadequate treatment. Hot-mix asphalt overlays typically can be given
subsequent BST as maintenance, with the standard being 15 years after initial overlay Rachel Road would be returned to the BST schedule.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

Rachel Road
Klye to end of County Road (0.8 Miles)

Description and Scope
Rachel Road is an urban local access road that runs about one and one half (1.5) miles in Benton County, but which is heavily used due to the surrounding urbanized area. This
segment of Rachel Road is failing, and the proposed project would provide a hot-mix asphalt overlay for eight tenths (0.8) miles of roadway.

Purpose and Need
Rachel Road sees extensive use due to its proximity to urban development. The road has deteriorated at a rate faster than would be expected for its maintenance regime. As
such, the Road Department has removed Rachel Road from the bituminous surface treatment (BST, or "chip seal") maintenance schedule and recommended the proposed
overlay.



57
Return to TOC

FEDERAL STPR INDIRECT GRANT FUNDS 983,000                  -$                    -$                    983,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    
ROAD FUND 300,000                  -                      -                      300,000              -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 1,283,000$             -$                    -$                    1,283,000$         -$                    -$                    -$                    

PRELIMINARY  ENGINEERING  -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICE COST 1,283,000               -                      -                      1,283,000           -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 1,283,000$             -$                    -$                    1,283,000$         -$                    -$                    -$                    

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

History and Current Status
The Willamette Heights area was created by the federal government, which established a sixty six (66) foot roadway easement for access to subdivided property. The route is
currently a private gravel road. Design standards for the urban arterial roadway will be per Benton County, the agency that, at this time, will adopt the established roadway.
The City of West Richland, the lead agency on this project, is seeking federal financing for construction.

Operating and Maintenance Impact

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

Once South 38th Avenue is constructed and adopted as a County Road, Benton County will assume maintenance of the roadway.

Willamette Heights - CE 1982
S 38th Ave (West Richland City Limits to West Richland City Limits) (0.7 Miles)

Description and Scope
South 38th Avenue is a private gravel road in the Willamette Heights area. The area around this roadway has been heavily developed and is now bordered on the north and
south by the city limits of the City of West Richland. This project would see construction of the roadway to an urban arterial standard.

Purpose and Need
South 38th Avenue serves as the primary ingress/egress for other private roads in the Willamette Heights area, and sees a substantial amount of public traffic as a route
through West Richland. Construction of this road to urban arterial standards will satisfy a public need – namely, a public route for the Willamette Heights area – that has been
identified by the Benton County Board of Commissioners, as well as provide easier access through the City of West Richland.



58
Return to TOC

CITY OF WEST RICHLAND 200,000$                -$                    -$                    200,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 200,000$                -$                    -$                    200,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    

PRELIMINARY  ENGINEERING  -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICE COST 200,000                  -                      -                      200,000              -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 200,000$                -$                    -$                    200,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

History and Current Status
The Willamette Heights area was created by the federal government, which established a sixty six (66) foot roadway easement for access to subdivided property. The route is
currently a private gravel road. Design standards for the urban arterial roadway will be per Benton County, the agency that, at this time, will adopt the established roadway.
The City of West Richland, the lead agency on this project, is financing the construction.

Operating and Maintenance Impact

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

Once Mt Adams View is constructed and adopted as a County Road, Benton County will assume maintenance of the roadway.

Willamette Heights - CE 1982
Mt. Adams View (S 38th Ave West to West Richland Limits) (0.1 Miles)

Description and Scope
Mt Adams View is a private gravel road in the Willamette Heights area. The area around this roadway has been heavily developed and is now bordered on the north, south,
and west by the city limits of the City of West Richland. This project would see construction of the roadway to an urban arterial standard.

Purpose and Need
Mt Adams View serves as a major east-west ingress/egress for other private roads in the Willamette Heights area, and sees a substantial amount of public traffic as a route
through West Richland. Construction of this road to urban arterial standards will satisfy a public need – namely, a public route for the Willamette Heights area – that has been
identified by the Benton County Board of Commissioners, as well as provide easier access through the City of West Richland.



59
Return to TOC

RURAL ARTERIAL PROGRAM (CRAB) 1,620,000$             -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    1,620,000$         
ROAD FUND 180,000                  100,000              -                      -                      -                      -                      80,000                

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 1,800,000$             100,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    1,700,000$         

PRELIMINARY  ENGINEERING  100,000$                100,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICE COST 1,700,000               -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      1,700,000           

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 1,800,000$             100,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    1,700,000$         

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

History and Current Status
Hanks Road is a T-3 freight route conveying up to four million (4,000,000) tons of goods annually. This proposal is part of a larger series of projects aimed at improving farm-to-
market freight routes in rural Benton County.

Operating and Maintenance Impact
The high volume of truck traffic increases the maintenance costs of Hanks Road compared to other roads of similar use and condition in Benton County. Improving the road to
an all-weather status and correcting the existing deficiencies should reduce those costs. Upon completion of the project, Hanks Road will return to the normal maintenance
regime.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

Hanks Road
Crosby to 1/2 mile East of McDonald (1.5 miles)

Description and Scope
Hanks Road runs just over twelve (12) miles in Benton County. A rural minor collector, Hanks Road sees extensive farming freight traffic, particularly during harvest. The
proposed project would improve one and one half (1.5) miles of Hanks Road via reconstruction to an all-weather standard and correcting horizontal and vertical alignment
deficiencies.

Purpose and Need
The existing road is substandard for the traffic it serves with vertical and horizontal sight obstructions and relatively narrow lanes providing challenges for freight.
Additionally, inclement weather can lead to weight restrictions and closures. The improvement of this roadway section through reconstruction will address these issues.



60
Return to TOC

UNDETERMINED FUNDING SOURCE 1,700,000$             -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    1,700,000$         
ROAD FUND 100,000                  100,000              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 1,800,000$             100,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    1,700,000$         

PRELIMINARY  ENGINEERING  100,000$                100,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICE COST 1,700,000               -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      1,700,000           

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 1,800,000$             100,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    1,700,000$         

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

History and Current Status
Hanks Road is a T-3 freight route conveying up to four million (4,000,000) tons of goods annually. This proposal is part of a larger series of projects aimed at improving farm-to-
market freight routes in rural Benton County.

Operating and Maintenance Impact
The high volume of truck traffic increases the maintenance costs of Hanks Road compared to other roads of similar use and condition in Benton County. Improving the road to
an all-weather status and correcting the existing deficiencies should reduce those costs. Upon completion of the project, Hanks Road will return to the normal maintenance
regime.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

Hanks Road
1/2 mile East of McDonald to Aller (1.5 miles)

Description and Scope
Hanks Road runs just over twelve (12) miles in Benton County. A rural minor collector, Hanks Road sees extensive farming freight traffic, particularly during harvest. The
proposed project would improve one and one half (1.5) miles of Hanks Road via reconstruction to an all-weather standard and correcting horizontal and vertical alignment
deficiencies.

Purpose and Need
The existing road is substandard for the traffic it serves with vertical and horizontal sight obstructions and relatively narrow lanes providing challenges for freight.
Additionally, inclement weather can lead to weight restrictions and closures. The improvement of this roadway section through reconstruction will address these issues.



61
Return to TOC

UNDETERMINED FUNDING SOURCE 2,000,000$             -$                    -$                    -$                    660,000$            670,000$            670,000$            
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 2,000,000$             -$                    -$                    -$                    660,000$            670,000$            670,000$            

PRELIMINARY  ENGINEERING  -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICE COST 2,000,000               -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      2,000,000           

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 2,000,000$             -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    2,000,000$         

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

History and Current Status
Case Road is a T-3 freight route conveying up to four million (4,000,000) tons of goods annually. This proposal is part of a larger series of projects aimed at improving farm-to-
market freight routes in rural Benton County.

Operating and Maintenance Impact
The high volume of truck traffic increases the maintenance costs of Case Road compared to other roads of similar use and condition in Benton County. Improving the road to
an all-weather status and correcting the existing deficiencies should reduce those costs. Upon completion of the project, Case Road will return to the normal maintenance
regime.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

Case Road
OIEH to Hanks (2.3 Miles)

Description and Scope
Case Road runs just over thirteen (13) miles in Benton County. A rural minor collector, Case Road sees extensive farming freight traffic, particularly during harvest. The
proposed project would improve two and three tenths (2.3) miles of Hanks Road via reconstruction to an all-weather standard and correcting horizontal and vertical alignment
deficiencies.

Purpose and Need
The existing road is substandard for the traffic it sees, with vertical and horizontal sight obstructions and substandard lanes providing challenges for freight. Additionally,
inclement weather can lead to weight restrictions and closures. The improvement of this roadway section through reconstruction will address these issues.



62
Return to TOC

UNDETERMINED FUNDING SOURCE 2,250,000$             -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    2,250,000$         
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 2,250,000$             -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    2,250,000$         

PRELIMINARY  ENGINEERING  -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICE COST 2,250,000               -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      2,250,000           

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 2,250,000$             -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    2,250,000$         

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

History and Current Status
County Well Road is designated a T-5 freight route, moving up to twenty-thousand (20,000) tons of freight over sixty (60) days. This is the first phase of this series aiming at
improving roadway conditions and safety. The project is currently in the preliminary planning phase.

Operating and Maintenance Impact
County Well Road has high maintenance costs compared to other gravel roads in the area due to the large volume of trucks using it during the farming season. Improving the
roadway will reduce overall maintenance costs and provide a better operating experience for the road users and surrounding land owners.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

County Well RD Phase I
SR 221 to McBee (3.0 Miles)

Description and Scope
County Well Road runs over seven miles in Benton County. Classified as a rural minor collector, the road sees significant truck traffic during the farming season. This project
is the first phase of a three-part series that will reconstruct six and eight tenths (6.8) miles of the road to an all-weather standard and work to improve safety and drainage.

Purpose and Need
The existing road has poor drainage and profile. There are also segments that would benefit from the application of guardrail. Improving the road to an all-weather paved
roadway will improve safety, ensure there are no travel restrictions during inclement weather, and reduce overall maintenance costs.  



63
Return to TOC

UNDETERMINED FUNDING SOURCE 1,500,000$             -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    1,500,000$         
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 1,500,000$             -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    1,500,000$         

PRELIMINARY  ENGINEERING  -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICE COST 1,500,000               -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      1,500,000           

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 1,500,000$             -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    1,500,000$         

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

History and Current Status
County Well Road is designated a T-5 freight route, moving up to twenty-thousand (20,000) tons of freight over sixty days. This is the second phase of this series aiming at
improving roadway conditions and safety. The project is currently in the preliminary planning phase.

Operating and Maintenance Impact
County Well Road has high maintenance costs compared to other gravel roads in the area due to the large volume of trucks using it during the farming season. Improving the
roadway will reduce overall maintenance costs and provide a better operating experience for the road users and surrounding land owners.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

County Well RD Phase II
McBee to Clodius (2.0 Miles)

Description and Scope
County Well Road runs over seven (7) miles in Benton County. Classified as a rural minor collector, the road sees significant truck traffic during the farming season. This
project is the second phase of a three-part series, that will reconstruct sixty and eight tenths (6.8) miles of the road to an all-weather standard, and work to improve safety and
drainage.

Purpose and Need
The existing road has poor drainage and profile. There are also segments that would benefit from the application of guardrail. Improving the road to an all-weather paved
roadway will improve safety, ensure there are no travel restrictions during inclement weather, and reduce overall maintenance costs.  



64
Return to TOC

UNDETERMINED FUNDING SOURCE 1,350,000$             -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    1,350,000$         
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 1,350,000$             -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    1,350,000$         

PRELIMINARY  ENGINEERING  -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICE COST 1,350,000               -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      1,350,000           

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

 -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
TOTAL 1,350,000$             -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    1,350,000$         

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

History and Current Status
County Well Road is designated a T-5 freight route, moving up to twenty-thousand (20,000) tons of freight over sixty days. This is the third phase of this series aiming at
improving roadway conditions and safety. The project is currently in the preliminary planning phase.

Operating and Maintenance Impact
County Well Road has high maintenance costs compared to other gravel roads in the area due to the large volume of trucks using it during the farming season. Improving the
roadway will reduce overall maintenance costs and provide a better operating experience for the road users and surrounding land owners.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

County Well RD Phase III
Clodius to County Pit (1.8 Miles)

Description and Scope
County Well Road runs over seven (7) miles in Benton County. Classified as a rural minor collector, the road sees significant truck traffic during the farming season. This
project is the final phase of a three-part series, that will reconstruct six and eight tenths (6.8) miles of the road to an all-weather standard, and work to improve safety and
drainage.

Purpose and Need
The existing road has poor drainage and profile. There are also segments that would benefit from the application of guardrail. Improving the road to an all-weather paved
roadway will improve safety, ensure there are no travel restrictions during inclement weather, and reduce overall maintenance costs.  



65
Return to TOC

UNDETERMINED FUNDING SOURCE 1,750,000$             -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    1,750,000$         
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 1,750,000$             -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    1,750,000$         

PRELIMINARY  ENGINEERING  -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICE COST 1,750,000               -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      1,750,000           

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 1,750,000$             -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    1,750,000$         

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

History and Current Status
Finley Road is a T-4 freight route conveying up to three-hundred thousand (300,000) tons of goods annually. This proposal is part of a larger series of projects aimed at
improving farm-to-market freight routes in rural Benton County.

Operating and Maintenance Impact
The relatively high volume of truck traffic increases the maintenance costs of Finley Road compared to other roads of similar use and condition in Benton County. Improving
the road to a paved, all-weather status and correcting the existing width deficiencies should reduce those costs. Upon completion of the project, Finely Road will return to the
normal maintenance regime for similar roads.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

Finley Road
M.P. 5.2 to End of Pavement (2.1 Miles)

Description and Scope
Finley Road runs over fifteen (15) miles in Benton County. A rural minor collector, Finley Road sees extensive farming freight traffic, particularly during harvest. The proposed
project would improve two and one tenths (2.1) miles of gravel road, to a paved all-weather standard, and establish proper widths.

Purpose and Need
The existing road is a gravel road with substandard lanes that provide challenges for freight. Due to it being a gravel road, inclement weather can lead to weight restrictions
and closures. The improvement of this roadway section through paving will address these issues.



66
Return to TOC

UNDETERMINED FUNDING SOURCE 250,000$                -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    250,000$            
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 250,000$                -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    250,000$            

PRELIMINARY  ENGINEERING  -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICE COST 250,000                  -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      250,000              

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 250,000$                -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    250,000$            

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

History and Current Status
While there has been some residential development in the general vicinity of these two roads, the surrounding land is still heavily agrarian. Providing this through route
would allow for more readily dissemination of produce. It would also provide access for those residences that have been constructed in the area.

Operating and Maintenance Impact
Currently, this portion of Dague Road does not exist. Its construction would add one half (0.5) miles of paved, all-weather roadway to the County's maintenance schedule.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

Dague Road
Terril to Game Farm (0.5 Miles)

Description and Scope

Purpose and Need
East Game Farm Road currently terminates at its east approximately one half (0.5) mile north of the intersection of Fremont Road and Terril Road. Currently, residents at the
end of Game Farm Road have to back-track several miles to access the nearby state highway system. Residents on Fremont Road and Terril Road also have to back-track
several miles to access the City of Kennewick. Connection of these two roads would establish a route that ultimately connects the residents to the state highway system and the
more urban areas.

Dague Road is a proposed one half (0.5) mile paved all-weather road that would connect E Game Farm Road to E Terril Road in Benton County, southeast of Kennewick, 
Washington.



67
Return to TOC

UNDETERMINED FUNDING SOURCE 1,320,000$             -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    1,320,000$         
ROAD FUND 150,000                  -                      75,000                75,000                -                      -                      -                      

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 1,470,000$             -$                    75,000$              75,000$              -$                    -$                    1,320,000$         

PRELIMINARY  ENGINEERING  150,000$                -$                    75,000$              75,000$              -$                    -$                    -$                    
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICE COST 1,320,000               -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      1,320,000           

-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 1,470,000$             -$                    75,000$              75,000$              -$                    -$                    1,320,000$         

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

History and Current Status

Operating and Maintenance Impact
Johnson Road is already maintained on a regular basis by the Benton County Road Department. The increased lane widths would likely only increase material costs, as labor
would be geared towards standard road widths.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

Johnson Road has experienced three (3) recorded accidents on this segment since 2008. This proposal aims at improving safety along this segment.

Johnson Road
CR 12 to Griffin (2.2 Miles)

Description and Scope
Johnson Road runs over five (5) miles in Benton County. A rural local access road, Johnson Road is narrower than prescribed standards. The proposed project would improve
two and two tenths (2.2) miles of Johnson Road to establish proper widths.

Purpose and Need
The existing road is a narrow road with substandard lanes that provide challenges for safety. The improvement of this roadway section through widening aims to address this
issue.



Addendum:  
Ongoing Maintenance  

Addendum: Ongoing 

Maintenance - Previously 

completed projects that 

have ongoing maintenance 

that is funded out of Capital 

Projects Fund.  



68
Return to TOC

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 222,000 37,000 37,000 37,000 37,000 37,000 37,000 
- - - - - - - 
- - - - - - - 
- - - - - - - 
- - - - - - - 

TOTAL 222,000$  37,000$              37,000$              37,000$              37,000$              37,000$              37,000$              

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS - - - - - - - 
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) - - - - - - - 
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 222,000 37,000 37,000 37,000 37,000 37,000 37,000 

- - - - - - - 
TOTAL 222,000$  37,000$              37,000$              37,000$              37,000$              37,000$              37,000$              

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

Description and Scope

Purpose and Need

“Face time” meetings using video conferencing have become a proven and widely used tool for the more effective use of time and resources. This project puts the infrastructure in place
to expand and manage video conferencing within the county wide area network and via the internet. It includes the ability to broadcast Board meetings inside the county network.

This $297K project was completed in 2014. It involved upgrading the existing video conferencing equipment in the Commissioner conference rooms and installing a Tandberg network-
wide video conferencing management infrastructure to facilitate future expansion of video conferencing locations and use. The system will now manage everything from full room
video environments to laptops with mobile video cameras. This is on going maintenance for the system

2019-2020

2017-2018 2019-2020

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

History and Current Status
The existing video conferencing equipment (with the exception of the monitors) was acquired in 2004. Since then the use of video conferencing technologies to save travel expense and
time has expanded significantly. Much of this is due to the increased availability of broadband networks, the quality of high definition imaging, and the desire to reduce the expenses
and time associated with travel. 

Operating and Maintenance Impact
The ongoing costs for this project are associated with replacement assessments for the equipment over a typical five year life cycle and annual software maintenance. Video
conferencing equipment in addition to the existing Commissioner conference rooms is not included. The project just builds the infrastructure necessary to support video conferencing of
various types added in the future. 

Video Conferencing Upgrade & Infrastructure 
Countywide



69
Return to TOC

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 1,500,000$  250,000$            250,000$            250,000$            250,000$            250,000$            250,000$            
- - - - - - - 
- - - - - - - 
- - - - - - - 
- - - - - - - 

TOTAL 1,500,000$  250,000$            250,000$            250,000$            250,000$            250,000$            250,000$            

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS - - - - - - - 
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) - - - - - - - 
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 1,500,000 250,000              250,000              250,000              250,000              250,000              250,000              

- - - - - - - 
TOTAL 1,500,000$  250,000$            250,000$            250,000$            250,000$            250,000$            250,000$            

As noted in the Information Technology Strategic Plan, “most users consider Microsoft Exchange the standard for large organizations.” The same is true of the Microsoft Office
software. The project would migrate the county to current versions of the software noted above and keep all the software versions current. The System Center capabilities include what
was previously a separate project for acquiring a Computer Asset Management System.

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020

Purpose and Need

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020

Countywide

This project began in 2012 and involved a commitment by the County to a Microsoft Enterprise Agreement (MS EA). MS EA's are for a minimum of three years with the most cost
benefits gained by extending to six years. The MS EA includes the licensing necessary for migrating to Microsoft Exchange email and current Office Pro software for all county
workstations. It also includes licensing for future implementations of System Center, SharePoint, and Lync.

Microsoft Enterprise Agreement

2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

Description and Scope

History and Current Status

Operating and Maintenance Impact
The Enterprise Agreement involves fixed annual payments for the duration of the agreement. One time costs in this estimate have been expended for software and professional services
to assist with the migration from Novell eDirectory and GroupWise to Microsoft Active Directory and Exchange. The increase in the annual payment for the optional second three years
reflects an estimate for additional users and licenses added during the first three years.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

2021-2022

Upgrading the current user base would cost around $250,000. A comparable expense would need to be repeated every two or three years to keep the versions current. In the
Information Technology Strategic Plan, PTI estimated a minimum cost of about $103,000 to migrate from GroupWise to Exchange with ongoing costs averaging about $15,000.

PARTICIPATING FUNDS



70
Return to TOC

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 414,000$  69,000$              69,000$              69,000$              69,000$              69,000$              69,000$              
- - - - - - - 
- - - - - - - 
- - - - - - - 
- - - - - - - 

TOTAL 414,000$  69,000$              69,000$              69,000$              69,000$              69,000$              69,000$              

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS - - - - - - - 
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) - - - - - - - 
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 414,000 69,000 69,000 69,000 69,000 69,000 69,000 

- - - - - - - 
TOTAL 414,000$  69,000$              69,000$              69,000$              69,000$              69,000$              69,000$              

Operating and Maintenance Impact
The ongoing costs for this project are associated with replacement assessments for the data center equipment over a typical five year life and annual maintenance of virtualization
software. These expenses could vary considerably depending on the level of virtualization that is adopted by the county and the products that are selected for managing the virtualized
environment. 

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

Server Virtualization
Countywide

Description and Scope

PARTICIPATING FUNDS

Virtualizing the county servers involves moving away from many independent servers running specific applications or functions and combining them into a few high capacity devices
that will run multiple virtual servers. This area is just now being investigated by Central Services staff. The cost estimate is developed from the Information Technology Strategic Plan
report.

Purpose and Need

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018

The primary goal of virtualization is to reduce the number of physical devices in order to reduce the maintenance requirements of physical devices both in staff time and power usage.
Virtualization also provides opportunities for improving up-time by clustering servers and adding fail-over technologies that automatically switch applications from a failed server to
an active one.

History and Current Status
The county data centers now house nearly forty servers supporting the general infrastructure and applications used by county departments. While virtualization has been around for
many years, it has now matured to the level of being considered a best practice in the industry. This is an area identified by the Information Technology Strategic Plan as a component
of a “robust technical infrastructure” (p. 11).

2019-2020 2021-2022



71
Return to TOC

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 312,000$  52,000$              52,000$              52,000$              52,000$              52,000$              52,000$              
- - - - - - - 
- - - - - - - 
- - - - - - - 
- - - - - - - 

TOTAL 312,000$  52,000$              52,000$              52,000$              52,000$              52,000$              52,000$              

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS - - - - - - - 
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) - - - - - - - 
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 312,000 52,000 52,000 52,000 52,000 52,000 52,000 

- - - - - - - 
TOTAL 312,000$  52,000$              52,000$              52,000$              52,000$              52,000$              52,000$              

The ongoing costs for this project are associated with replacement assessments or leases for the equipment over a typical five year life cycle. They also include software maintenance
and technical support contracts for the systems. No doubt the upgrade will reflect the continuing trend of convergence in voice and data systems into what is broadly described as
unified communications.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

PROJECT COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2017-2018 2019-2020 2021-2022
PROJECT BUDGET

History and Current Status

Every five to six years, the county voice systems have been upgraded to newer technology and increased capacity. In the last couple of cycles, these upgrades have including leasing
most of the equipment which has become less advantageous as the technology changes. Purchasing and incorporating into the Replacement Fund is what is proposed here.

Operating and Maintenance Impact

This project involves a continuation of the migration from the existing Nortel platform to the current Avaya voice technology. With the acquisition of Nortel's telephony assets in 2009,
Avaya committed to Nortel's long standing practice of reusing existing hardware while enhancing and expanding features and functionality. The project will begin with a review and
updated design.

Voice System Upgrade
Countywide

Description and Scope

Purpose and Need

As with other aspects of information technology, the county voice systems are constantly expanding in both capacity and functionality. The leases on the existing equipment will be
ending in 2014 and will need to be replaced with new leases or purchases in order to continue the migration of the voice systems from Nortel to the supported Avaya platforms.



Glossary 

GLOSSARY  - includes 

terms that will help you 

understand the technical 

language often used in the 

capital improvement plan. 

Glossary terms are listed 

alphabetically  under each 

alphabet letter and include 

a brief description and an 

acronym, as  applicable. 



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2017-2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Glossary 

  B C 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN DOCUMENT GLOSSARY 

The glossary includes terms that will help you understand the technical language often used in the capital improvement plan. 
Glossary terms are listed alphabetically under each alphabet letter and include a brief description and an acronym, as applicable.  

A 
ACQUISITION: Acquiring land, existing buildings, or 
equipment and vehicles. The Public Works Department uses 
the following definition: Right-of-Way/Acquisitions consist of 
right-of-way cost for capital projects, including appraisal, 
survey services, and research, as well as purchase transactions 
and any associated assistance.  

ADA COMPLIANCE: A Federal law providing for a wide 
range of protection to individuals with disabilities ranging 
from prohibitions against discrimination in employment 
specific requirements for modifications of public facilities and 
transportation systems. 

ADOPTION: A formal action taken by the Board of Benton 
County Commissioners which sets the spending limits for the 
fiscal year.  

ARCHITECT/ENGINEERING FEES:  Fees associated with 
the art/science and technology concerned with designing and 
building structures.   

B 
BALANCED BUDGET: Consists of each funds’ estimated 
beginning fund balance plus revenues to equal total funds 
available, minus total expenditures, which equals the ending 
fund balance. These ending fund balances must either equate 
to zero dollars or have a reserve balance remaining. 

BEGINNING BALANCE: Comprised of residual funds 
brought forward from the previous year (ending balance). 

BOND: A debt security, in which the authorized issuer owes 
the holders a debt and, depending on the terms of the bond, is 
obliged to pay interest (the coupon) to use and/or to repay the 
principal at a later date, termed maturity. 

C 
CAPITAL FUND: Routine capital outlay purchases and 
projects by the county including but not limited to office 
furniture, major building maintenance, real property 
acquisition, building remodeling projects, road projects, and 
water projects. Said funds shall be invested by the Benton 
County Treasurer with interest accruing to the Current 
Expense fund.   

72
Return  to TOC 



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2017-2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Glossary 

  B C 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT: Non-routine capital 
expenditures that generally cost more than $5,000 resulting in 
the purchase of equipment, construction, renovation or 
acquisition of land, infrastructure and/or buildings with an 
expected useful life of at least five years.   

COLLECTOR (Urban): The collector street system provides 
both land access service and traffic circulation within 
residential and neighborhoods and commercial and industrial 
areas.  It differs from the arterial system in that facilities on the 
collector system may penetrate residential neighborhoods, 
distributing trips from the arterials through the area to their 
ultimate destinations.  Conversely, the collector street also 
collects traffic from local streets in residential neighborhoods 
and channels I into the arterial system.  In the central business 
district, and in other areas of similar development and traffic 
density, the collector system may include the entire street grid. 
The collector street system may also carry local bus routes. 

CORRIDOR: A major transportation route which can consist 
of one or more highways, arterial streets, transit lines, rail lines 
and/or bikeways. 

D 
DEBT CAPACITY: Ability to borrow money. The County’s 
legal non-voted debt capacity is 1.5% of the assessed 
valuation, less outstanding limited tax general obligation bond 
debt, plus available assets. The County’s legal voted debt 
capacity is 2.5% of the assessed valuation, less outstanding 
limited tax general obligation bond debt, plus available assets. 

DEMOLITION: The destruction and removal of some or all of 
an existing structure. 

DEPRECIATION: The periodic cost assigned for the 
reduction in usefulness and value of a long-term tangible 
asset.  

E 
EASEMENT: A right to use the real property of another 
without possessing it.  

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT:  Investment of resources to 
create financial self-sufficiency and prosperity in a 
community, including the industrial, commercial, and service 
sectors.

73
Return  to TOC 



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2017-2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Glossary 

  B C 

F 
FAIRGROUNDS O & M FUND: A fund established for the 
purpose of operations and maintenance of the Benton County 
Fairgrounds; however, the project cost allocated in this report 
is for the capital projects located at the fairgrounds.  

FURNITURE, FIXTURES & EQUIPMENT (FF&E): Moveable 
furniture, fixtures or other equipment that have no permanent 
connection to the structure of a building or utilities. 

FMSIB: Freight Mobility Strategic Investment Board (state 
indirect grant funds). 

G 
GOAL: A general and timeless statement created with a 
purpose based on the needs of the community.  

H 
HEATING, VENTILATION, AND AIR CONDITIONING 
(HVAC): Refers to technology of indoor environmental 
comfort. 

I 
INFRASTRUCTURE: Facilities that support the continuance 
and growth of a community.  Examples include roads, water 
lines, sewers, public buildings, & parks.  

J 
JAIL DEPRECIATION FUND: In 1998, Benton County 
established a Jail Depreciation Fund for the purpose of 
holding monies collected from the cities and county for 
depreciation factors on the Benton County Jail. By establishing 
and funding the Jail Depreciation Fund thru the prisoner bed 
day rate, Benton County hopes to limit the financial impact to 
the General Fund should a catastrophic failure occur in the jail. 
Jail Depreciation funds shall also be used to replace equipment 
vital to jail operations, which usually are expensive in nature. 

K 
There are no items at this time. 

L 
LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS: A method of describing a particular 
parcel of land in such a way that it uniquely describes the 
particular parcel and no other. 

74 
Return  to TOC 



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2017-2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Glossary 

  B C 

M 
MAJOR COLLECTOR (Rural):  These routes have several 
definitions. 1) serve county seats not on arterials routes, larger 
towns not directly served by the higher systems, and other 
traffic generator of equivalent intracounty importance, such as 
consolidated schools, shipping points, county parks, and 
important agricultural areas; 2) link these places with nearby 
larger towns or cities, or with routes of higher classifications; 
and 3) serve the more important intracounty travel corridors. 

MASTER PLAN: A plan prepared to specify and coordinate 
the provision of one or more infrastructure systems and 
related services. 

MILESTONE: A tangible point in time that tells how far along 
a project is in the process.  

MINOR COLLECTOR (Rural): These routes should 1) be 
spaced at intervals consistent with population density to  
accumulate traffic from local roads and bring all developed 
areas within reasonable distances of collector roads; 2) provide 
service to the remaining smaller communities; and 3) link the 
local important traffic generators with their rural vicinity. 

N 
There are no items at this time. 

O 
OTHER EXPENDITURES: Expenditures not related to CIP 
projects for a specific fund. Examples include operating 
transfers, minimum fund balances, and etc.

P 
PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND:  is a cumulative reserve fund 
for the purpose of accumulating and expending said moneys 
for capital improvements within Benton County parks.  

Q 
There are no items at this time. 

75 
Return  to TOC 



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2017-2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Glossary 

  B C 

R 
R.E.E.T. FUND: 1/4 PERCENT REAL ESTATE EXCISE TAX is 
a fund to account for the revenues generated by a special 1/4 
of 1 percent excise tax levied on the sale of real property 
within the County.  All projects must be included in the 
annual Benton County Comprehensive Land Use Plan before 
any spending is approved.  

R.E.E.T TECHNOLOGY FUND: is a fund established per 
State of Washington Legislature SSHB 1240, section 2 to 
increase excise fees on Real Estate Excise Tax to provide for 
the development and implementation of an automated system 
for the electronic processing of the real estate excise tax 
compatible with the system developed by the Washington 
State Department of Revenue.  

REVENUE: Total amounts available for appropriation 
including estimated revenues, fund transfers and beginning 
fund balances. Financial resources are received from taxes, 
user charges and other levels of government.  

RIGHT-OF-WAY: The right given by one landowner to 
another to pass over the land actually transferring ownership. 
ROW is granted by deed or easement, for construction and 
maintenance according to a designated use. 

ROAD FUND: is created in each County of the State per the 
RCW 36.82.010. County Road Funds may be used for the 
construction, alteration, repair, improvement, or maintenance 
of county roads and bridges, as well as acquiring, operating, 
and maintaining of machinery, equipment, quarries, and for 
the cost of establishing county roads, acquiring rights-of-way 
therefor, and expenses for the operation of the county 
engineering office. 

S 
STPR: Surface Transportation Program Rural (Competitive 
Federal indirect grant fund)  

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT: Development with the 
goal of preserving environmental quality, natural resources 
and livability for present and future generations. 

T 
TBD: To Be Determined are projects that are requested, 
however, the funding has not been determined.  

TIB: Transportation Improvement Board (Competitive State 
indirect grant funds)  

7 6
Return  to TOC 



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2017-2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Glossary 

  B C 

U 
There are no items at this time. 

V 
There are no items at this time. 

W 
There are no items at this time. 

X 
There are no items at this time. 

Y 
There are no items at this time. 

Z 
There are no items at this time.

77
Return  to TOC 



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date:  _ Nov. 1st  
         
Subject: __Justice 

Center Remodel 
 
Prepared by:       Fred Bowen       

                    
Reviewed by:                  

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  _____  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  __X__ 
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda            _____  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _X___ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Meier Architecture & Engineers has completed the construction plans for the remodel of six (6) areas located at the 
Justice Center. These areas include the PA’s offices, Office of Public Defense, Executive Conference Room, 
Information Technology (IT), Administration and Restrooms.  
 

SUMMARY 
 
June 28th 2016 the Board approved the 3rd Amend to the Contract w/Meier Enterprises, Inc. for Tenant Improvement. 
September 8th 2016 the drawings were completed and submitted to City of Kennewick for plan review. The review 
has been completed and the plans are ready to go out for bids.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The County Commissioner approve to proceed with the bidding process for the Justice Center remodel.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Remodel is estimated at $1,810,000 
 

MOTION 
 
Move to approve the Public Services Administrator to proceed with the bidding process for the Justice Center remodel 
project. 

WEH
Text Box
Tenant Improvements for Justice Center ~ D Waggoner







 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 11-1-16        
Subject: Change Order #1 

for MG Wagner. 
Prepared by:       D. Waggoner  
Reviewed by:       

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  __x___  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda           _____  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            __X__ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION / SUMMARY 
 
On October 18, 2016, Benton County entered into a Public Works contract with MG Wagner to reroof 
several buildings at the Justice Center.  This was authorized by Resolution 2016-796. 
 
Meier Architecture and MG Wagner have requested a change order to the reroof plan.  A change is 
requested to modify the underlayment material on the roof of the original Courts and Jail building, which 
will result in a credit of $19,902.00.  A second change has been requested to change from a standard 
solvent based adhesive to a solvent-free adhesive.  The purpose of this is to use a low odor adhesive to 
minimize the smell of glue inside the building.  This change will result in a charge of $65,860.00.  The 
combination of the two changes will be a charge of $45,958.00.     
 
The Facilities Manager and Construction Project Manager recommend accepting the requested change 
order.  This change will not add any time to the contract which has a schedule completion date of July 21, 
2017.  The original contract amount was for $1,867,322.00 and with the change order, the new amount 
will be $1,913,280.00 plus WSST. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the resolution to authorize Change Order #1 and authorize the Chairman of the Board to sign the 
attached Change Order No. 1. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
An additional $45,958.00 is requested from the Capital Fund. 
 
MOTION 
 
Motion to approve the resolution and authorize Change Order #1 to the contract with MG Wagner. 
  
 

WEH
Text Box
Change Order #1 w/MG Wagner for Re-Roofing Project @ the Justice Center ~ D Waggoner



 RESOLUTION 
  
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 WITH MG WAGNER FOR THE 
JUSTICE CENTER REROOF PROJECT AND AUTHORIZING CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 
 
WHEREAS, Benton County entered into a Public Works contract with MG Wagner on October 18, 
2016, authorized by Resolution 2016-796, for the Justice Center Reroof Project; and 
  
WHEREAS, Meier Architecture and MG Wagner have requested two modifications to the project 
with Change Order No. 1; and 
 
WHEREAS, the first change is the deletion of coverboard material on the roof of the Old Jail and Old 
Courts building which will result in a credit of $19,902; and 
 
WHEREAS, the second change is to use a solvent-free adhesive instead of the standard solvent-
based adhesive, for the purpose of keeping glue odors out of the buildings as much as possible, on 
the entire project, which will result in a charge of $65,860.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, the combination of the two requests from Change Order No. 1 will result in charge of 
$45,958.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Facilities Manager and Construction Project Manager recommend the County 
accept Change Order No. 1; NOW THEREFORE,  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, 
hereby approves Change Order No. 1 to the contract with MG Wagner, for an additional amount of 
$45,958.00, plus WSST, and authorizes the Chairman of the Board to signed Change Order No. 1, 
attached hereto; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this change will increase the total cost of the contract by $45,958.00, 
from the original amount of $1,867,322.00 to a new total of $1,913,280.00, plus WSST. 
 
 
 
Dated this  __________________ day of ___________________ , 2016. 
 
 
                                   ______ ___                
 Chairman of the Board 
 
  
                                   ______ ___                
 Member 
 
 
                                   ______ ___                
 Member 
  
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners  

of Benton County, Washington. 
Attest....................................................... 

         Clerk of the Board 





AGENDA ITEM     
MTG. DATE: November 1, 2016 
SUBJECT:  Prel. Plat of La Buena 
Vida Estates – SUB 2016-005 
MEMO DATE: October 20, 2016 
Prepared By: Clark A. Posey 

TYPE OF ACTION 
NEEDED 
Execute Contract 
Pass Resolution        X 
Pass Ordinance 
Pass Motion             X 

Consent Agenda 
Public Meeting X 
1st Discussion  
2nd Discussion  
Other    

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
On September 13, 2016, the Benton County Planning Commission conducted public 
hearings on the proposed preliminary plat of La Buena Vida Estates – SUB 2016-005.  This 
subdivision consists of 21.28 acres to be divided into 15 single-family lots with an average 
lots size of 49,281 square feet.  After closing the Open Record Hearings and discussing the 
proposed plat, the Planning Commission made a recommendation to approve the 
preliminary plat as presented with conditions.  The Planning Commission’s record and 
recommendation for SUB 2016-005 is being submitted for your review and decision.  The 
Board has set a public meeting for November 1, 2016 at 9:00 a.m. to review the record 
and recommendation of the Planning Commission. 
 
SUMMARY 
The Benton County Planning Commission has completed the open record hearing for the 
preliminary plat application of La Buena Vida Estates - SUB 2016-005.  The Board of County 
Commissioners will consider the preliminary plat and recommendation of the Planning 
Commission at a public meeting on November 1, 2016. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
After closing the Open Record Hearing and discussing the issue, the Planning Commission 
voted to recommend approval of the preliminary plat as presented with conditions.  After 
reviewing the information presented at the public meeting, the Planning staff recommends 
that the Board adopt the Planning Commission’s recommendation, Findings and 
Conclusions and approve the proposed preliminary plat. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
New county roads. 
 
MOTION  
If the Board agrees with the Planning Commission and Planning Department, the Board can 
adopt the Planning Commission recommendation, Findings and Conclusions as their own 
and approve the preliminary plat of La Buena Vida Estates - SUB 2016-005 with conditions. 
If however, the Board disagrees with the Planning Commission’s recommendation then the 
Board will have to complete your own Findings and either approve the plat with additional 
conditions or deny the plat.  If based on the Planning Commission’s record, you wish to 
complete your own findings, the Planning Department could draft the Boards findings and 
conclusions for the Board’s approval. 

CCM 1.0 

WEH
Text Box
Preliminary Plat – SUB 2016-005 ~ C Posey



RESOLUTION 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY PLANNING REGARDING PRELIMINARY PLAT APPLICATION SUB 2016-005 – 
LA BUENA VIDA ESTATES.  APPLICANT: DOS CABRAS VIEJAS, PARCEL NUMBER 1-0984-400-0001-000.  
 
WHEREAS, the Legal notification pursuant to the Benton County Code, Title 9.08 was given on Thursday, 
September 1, 2016; and, 
 
WHEREAS, public notice procedures, pursuant to RCW 58.17.080 and 58.17.090, were carried out 
including: Notice to affected jurisdictions, (July 22, 2016); publication of Notice of Application Tri-City 
Herald (July 22, 2016); publication of Legal Notice (September 1, 2016); and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission conducted an Open Record Hearing on September 13, 2016, in 
Planning Annex, 1002 Dudley Avenue, Prosser WA; and, 
 
WHEREAS, all those who testified and those public hearing exhibits that were received into evidence are 
identified in the minutes for the open record hearing conducted on September 13, 2016; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission continued the hearing until October 11, 2016; and, 
 
WHEREAS, all those who testified and those public hearing exhibits that were received into evidence are 
identified in the minutes for the open record hearing conducted on October 11, 2016; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at the open record hearing held on September 13, 2016 and October 
11, 2016, considered the testimony submitted and voted to recommend approval with conditions of the 
Preliminary Plat of La Buena Vida Estates; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission entered its written findings, conclusions and recommendations 
concerning this matter, and forwarding the same to the Board of County Commissioners; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners did review the record and recommendation prepared by 
the Planning Commission and considered oral and written arguments at a Closed Record Public Meeting 
on Tuesday, November 1, 2016; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners did adopt the Planning Commission’s Finding of Fact and 
Conclusions as their own (which are kept in File No. SUB 2016-005 in the Planning Department records); 
and, 
 
WHEREAS, it further appears that the public interest will be served by the approval of the Preliminary Plat 
of Steeplechase as considered by the Board of County Commissioners; NOW THEREFORE,  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of County Commissioners hereby adopts the Planning Commission’s 
Findings of Fact and Conclusions as their own regarding the Preliminary Plat of La Buena Vida Estates– 
SUB 2016-005 and hereby approves the preliminary plat with 15 conditions as contained in the Planning 
Commission’s Recommendation, Findings of Fact and Conclusions. 
 
Dated this 1st day of November 2016. 
 
 _________________________ 
 Chairman of the Board 
 
 
 _________________________ 
 Member 
 
 _________________________ 
 Member 
 Constituting the Board of County 
 Commissioners of Benton County 
 Washington. 
Attest....................................................... 

Clerk of the Board CAP 



LA BUENA VIDA ESTATES SUBDIVISION

DATED
PCR 1 PCR 1.0 Subdivision Application June 29, 2016
Includes: PCR 1.1 Plat Map July 21, 2016

PCR 1.2 Environmental Checklist June 29, 2016
PCR 1.3 Wetland Delineation Report June 15, 2007
PCR 1.4 Preliminary Drainage System Design Review June 29, 2016

PCM 1 PCM 1.0 Staff Memo September 6, 2016
Includes: PCM 1.1 Site Map of proposed preliminary plat area July 1, 2016

PCM 1.2 Aerial Map of proposed preliminary plat area July 1, 2016
PCM 1.3 Notice of Application July 22, 2016
PCM 1.4 Determination Of Non Significance August 11, 2016
PCM 1.5 Notice of Open Record Hearing August 26, 2016
PCM 1.6 Comments from Benton-Franklin Health District June 27, 2016
PCM 1.7 Email from Benton Franklin Health District July 5, 2016
PCM 1.8 Comments from Benton PUD August 3, 2016
PCM 1.9 Comments from Benton Irrigation District July 27, 2016
PCM 1.10 Comments from Dept. of Ecology August 30, 2016
PCM 1.11 Comments from Benton County Fire Marshal August 3, 2016
PCM 1.12 Email from Fire District #2 August 12, 2016
PCM 1.13 Email from Benton County Fire Marshal August 12, 2016
PCM 1.14 Email from Ken Williams August 23, 2016
PCM 1.15 Comments from Benton County Assessor July 28, 2016
PCM 1.16 Comments from Benton County Public Works September 6, 2016

Planning Commission Hearing Exhibit List - September 13, 2016
PCH 1 PCH 1.0 Documents from Oasis Water Corporation September 8, 2016
Includes: PCH 1.1 Photos of wetland area September 2, 2016

PCH 1.2 Email from Paul Christensen September 9, 2016
PCH 1.3 Email from Benton County Road Dept. September 12, 2016
PCH 1.4 Aerial Maps with proposed subdivison overlay September 13, 2016
PCH 1.5 Email from Benton County Fire Marshal Septemer 13, 2016

Continued Planning Commission Hearing Exhibit List - October 11, 2016
PCM 2 PCM 2.0 Staff Memo October 4, 2016
Includes: PCM 2.1 Notice of Continued Open Record Hearing September 26, 2016

PCM 2.2 Comments from the Benton Co. Road Dept. October 3, 2016
PCM 2.3 Updated Preliminary Plat Map October 4, 2016

Planning Commission Continued Hearing Exhibit List - October 11, 2016
PCH 2 PCH 2.0 Letter from Louetta Shiplet October 5, 2016
Includes: PCH 2.1 Oasis operating Permit - Paul Christensen October 11, 2016

PCH 2.2 Map of Subdivision with areas highlighted October 11, 2016
Board of County Commissioners Public Meeting Exhibit List - November 1, 2016

CCM CCM 1.0 Board of County Commissioners Agenda Sheet October 20, 2016
Includes: CCM 1.1 Planning Commission Findings October 18, 2016

CCM 1.2 Planning Commission audio recordings Septemer 13, 2016 &
October 11, 2016

EXHIBIT LIST FOR SUB 2016-005/EA 2016-016

Planning Commission Application Exhibit List

Planning Commission Staff Memo Exhibit List  September 13, 2016



PCR = Planning Commission Record Exhibits
PCM = Planning Commission Memo Exhibits
PCH = Exhibits submitted during Hearing
CCR = County Commissioner Record Exhibits
CCM = County Commissioner Memo Exhibits
CCR = County Commissioner Record Exhibits
CCM = County Commissioner Memo Exhibits
CCH = Exhibits submitted during Hearing



CCM 1.1















The PC FTR audio recordings for the PC public hearings (Sept. 13 
and October 11) are available at the following location on the 
County network.  If you need help opening it or if you need to 
download the FTR Player - please contact Bob Woody.

BOCC Audio Recording Folder 
\\chfrodo\AllCommissioners\Planning Commission Recordings

or at:

g:\Planning Commission Recordings

CCM 1.2













________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.C. Memo for SUB 2016-005 Page 1 of 9 September 6, 2016 

  Benton County Planning Department 
Planning Annex, P.O. Box 910, 1002 Dudley Avenue, Prosser WA 99350, Phone: (509) 786-5612 or (509) 736-3086, Fax (509) 786-5629 

 
 
 

 
DATE:   October 4, 2016 
 
TO:    Benton County Planning Commission 
 
FROM:   Benton County Planning Department 
 
RE:    Preliminary Plat Application SUB 2016-005 – La Buena Vida 

Estates 
 
APPLICANT:    Dos Cabras Viejas, LLC, 8524 W. Gage Blvd. Bldg. A, 

Kennewick WA 99336 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Benton County Planning Commission opened the hearing for the preliminary plat of 
La Buena Vida Estates Sub 2016-005 on September 13, 2016.  At the conclusion of the 
public testimony the Planning Commission determined that additional information was 
needed for them to be able to make a decision on whether the preliminary plat would 
meet the requirements of the Benton County Road Department.  Therefore, the 
Planning Commission continued the public hearing up to 90 days to allow the applicants 
to meet with the ’ engineer and the County Road Department.   
 
The applicants and their engineer met with the County Road Department and Planning 
Department on the proposed plat.  After the meeting the applicants’ engineer submitted 
a revised preliminary plat with the additional information requested by the County Road 
Department.  That revised plat is attached as (PCM 2.3).  Also attached are additional 
comments from the County Road Department (PCM 2.2).   
 
The applicant requested that the preliminary plat be placed on the October 11, 2016 
Planning Commission meeting.  Since the Planning Commission continued the hearing 
for up to 90 days and the applicant was able to meet the deadline for the October 11, 
2016 Planning Commission meeting, Planning Staff published a legal notice that the 
continued hearing would be conducted on October 11, 2016 (PCM 2.1).   
 
SPECIFIC REQUEST: 
The applicant is requesting preliminary plat approval to subdivide approximately 21.28 
acres into 15 lots with an average lot size of 49,281 square feet and a minimum lot size 
of 40,574 square feet.  
 
STAFF’S FINDINGS OF FACT: 

 
Based on the application and information received as of the date of this memo, the 
planning staff makes the following findings: 

PCM 2.0 



 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.C. Memo for SUB 2016-005     Page 2 of 9    September 6, 2016 

 
1. The applicant and property owners for SUB 2016-005 is Dos Cabras Viejas, LLC, 

8524 W. Gage Blvd. Building A-1, Kennewick WA 99336.  
 
2. Preliminary Plat Application SUB 2016-005 is requesting preliminary plat approval 

to subdivide 21.28 acres into 15 lots with an average lot size of 49,281 square 
feet and a minimum lot size of 40,574 square feet. 

3. The subject property is located West of Highland Drive, South of Rainy Lane, 
South of the South end of Thunder Road, and West of the West end of Sandy 
Lane, on Lot 2 of Short Plat 2724, in the Southeast Quarter of Section 12, 
Township 9 North, Range 26 East, W.M. 

 
4. Preliminary Plat Application SUB 2016-005 was determined to be a complete 

application on July 22, 2016.  The Notice of Application required by BCC 
17.10.100 was published on July 26, 2016 and sent to the property owners with 
300 feet of the proposed plat on July 25, 2016.   

 
5. The affected agencies review letter was sent on July 22, 2016.  The comments of 

those agencies that responded are attached to this staff memo. 
 
6. The notice for the Benton County Planning Commission’s Open Record Hearing 

for application SUB 2016-005 was published on September 1, 2016 in the Tri-City 
Herald and mailed to property owners of record within 300 feet of the outer 
boundaries of the parcel on August 29, 2016.  The Open Record Hearing is 
scheduled for Tuesday, September 13, 2016. 

 
7. The Preliminary Plat of La Buena Vida Estates has been reviewed under the 

requirements of the State Environmental Policy Act and a Determination of Non-
Significance was issued on August 11, 2016.   

 
8. The property is zoned Urban Growth Area Residential, which requires a minimum 

lot area of Seven Thousand five hundred (7,500) square feet and an average lot 
width of not less than seventy (70) feet.  The lots proposed in the Preliminary 
Plat of La Buena Vida Estates comply with the minimum lot area and lot width for 
the Urban Growth Area Residential Zoning District.  Residential dwellings are 
allowed uses in the Urban Growth Area Residential Zoning District. 

 
9. The Benton County Comprehensive Plan designates this area as Urban Growth 

Area, providing a density of one to six dwelling units per acre.  The proposed 
preliminary plat has an average lot area of 49,281 square feet and a density of 
one dwelling unit per 1.4 acres. This development is consistent with the density 
requested in the Benton County Comprehensive Plan for Rural Lands 1 zoning 
district. 

 



 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.C. Memo for SUB 2016-005     Page 3 of 9    September 6, 2016 

10. The streets for the proposed subdivision will be designed with appropriate 
consideration, as determined by the County Engineer, for existing and projected 
roads, anticipated traffic volumes and patterns, topographic and drainage 
conditions, public convenience, public safety, and the proposed uses of the land 
served (BCC 9.08.050 (a)) 

 
11. The streets within the proposed subdivision are extensions of existing streets.  

The proposed preliminary plat provides for extension of a proposed road into the 
area north of the site. Attached to this memo are the comments from the Road 
Department on the proposed preliminary plat. (PCM 1.16) and (PCM 2.2).(BCC 
9.08.050 (b)) 

 
12. The proposed preliminary plat will provide a connection through the proposed 

plat, from Thunder Road to Highland Road. (BCC 9.08.050 (c)). 
 

13. The proposed streets within the plat are designed to provide access to existing 
arterials in the area. 

 
14. The lots within the proposed preliminary plat will be larger than normal lots or 

parcels within the Urban Growth Area Residential Zoning District utilizing a public 
water supply and on-site septic systems. (BCC 9.08.050 (e)) 

 
15. There are no temporary cul-de-sacs proposed within the preliminary plat (BCC 

9.08.050 (f))   
 
16. There is no cul-de-sac proposed within the development.  BCC 9.08.050 (g). 
 
17. The Benton County Department of Public Works must approve proposed street 

names within the proposed plat. The proposed streets are extensions of existing 
county roads and are proposed to use the same names as the existing roads. 
(BCC 9.08.050 (g)).  
 

18. The roads within the proposed plat are laid out so that they will intersect as 
nearly as possible at right angles. (BCC 9.08.050 (h)) 

 
19. There are no street jogs with centerline offsets of less than one hundred twenty-

five (125) feet within the proposed plat.  (BCC 9.08.050 (i)) 
 
20. The proposed development is not adjacent to a railroad right-of-way or the right-

of-way of a limited access highway, freeway, or primary arterial. (BCC 9.08.050 
(j)) 

 
21. The corner lots within the proposed plat are ten (10) percent wider than 

minimum lot widths to allow for adequate setback of a building from both 



 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.C. Memo for SUB 2016-005     Page 4 of 9    September 6, 2016 

streets. (BCC 9.08.050 (k)) 
 
22. The sidelines of lots within the proposed plat are approximately at right angles to 

the street in front or radial to curved street lines. (BCC 9.08.050 (l)) 
 
23. None of the lots within the proposed subdivision will have double frontage.  (BCC 

9.08.050 (m)) 
 
24. All lots within the proposed development front onto a dedicated street. (BCC 

9.08.050 (n)) 
 
25. The applicant has proposed that the preliminary plat be served by the on-site 

septic systems.   The proposed development is within the City of Benton City’s 
Urban Growth Area.  The nearest City sewer main is located approximately 2,500 
southeast of the proposed subdivision.  The Benton Franklin Health District 
provided that the proposal generally meets their requirements for plats utilizing 
on-site sewage disposal systems and Oasis Water supply.  The approval was 
subject to the requirements listed in the Benton Franklin Health District letter 
dated June 27, 2016. (PCM 1.6)  The Benton Franklin Health District also 
recommended that the entire subdivision be dry-sewered in order to facilitate 
future connection to a municipal sewer utility. (BCC 9.08.050 (o)) 

 
26. The Benton County Department of Public Works will review the storm drainage 

issue during their review of the plans for the construction of the proposed county 
roads. (BCC 9.08.050 (p)) 

 
27. The proposed Preliminary Plat of La Buena Vida Estates does not contain land to 

be designated for open space.  The Benton County Code does not require open 
space dedications for this type of preliminary plat.   
 

28. The proposed preliminary plat will add new roads to the County road system.  
The Benton County Department of Public Works has reviewed the proposed 
location of the roads. 

 
29 Ben Franklin Transit did not comment on transit service for the proposed 

development.  The proposed plat and surrounding area is not served by public 
transit.  The closest Ben Franklin Transit stop is located on Highland Drive 
approximately ½ mile east of the site. 

 
30. One finding that must be made to approve this application is that adequate 

provisions for potable water supply have been made. The application for the 
Preliminary Plat of La Buena Vida Estates shows that Oasis Water System will 
supply water for the proposed lots.  The Washington State Department of Health 
did not comment on this preliminary plat application.  In order to complete a 



 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.C. Memo for SUB 2016-005     Page 5 of 9    September 6, 2016 

connection to the Oasis Water System the developer will be required to have 
approval from the Washington State Department of Health for the water system 
extension plans, additional connections and completed project.   

 
 The Planning Department has not received any comments from the Oasis Water 

Corporation that they can or will serve the proposed development with water 
service.  During the review of this proposed plat the Planning Commission must 
make a determination whether there is evidence submitted to determine that, 
regardless of the legal requirements, there is physically available sufficient 
potable water in quantity and quality to support the proposed Development.  The 
Planning Commission may request that the applicant provide information from 
the Oasis Water Company stating that they are able and willing to provide water 
service to the development.   

  
31. The proposed plat does not provide for parks or recreation opportunities.   
 
32. The proposed plat is within the Kiona-Benton School District.  The proposed 

development is located within 1,400 feet of a school.  The Kiona Benton High 
School is located northeast of the site.  The Kiona-Benton School District did not 
comment on this application. 

 
33. The proposed development is not within a flood control zone as outlined on the 

Federal Emergency Management Agency Flood Insurance Rate Map 530237 0420 
B with an effective date of July 19, 1982. 

 
34. The proposed development is located within the Benton Irrigation District.  The 

District submitted comments on the proposed plat.  (PCM 1.9) 
 
35. The Benton County Fire Marshal reviewed the proposed plat and stated the 

proposed development will be required to provide adequate fire flows.  The 
requirements of the Fire Marshal must be met prior to the final plat being 
submitted, a letter from the water purveyor stating its willingness and ability to 
provide 500 gpm for 30 minutes at 40psi static pressure and 20psi residual, at 
normal peak instantaneous demands, is to be sent to the Benton County Fire 
Marshal. 

 
• Prior to final plat approval, a copy of the water system plans shall be 

stamped by a Washington State registered engineer, and shall be signed 
by the water purveyor, shall be given to the Benton County Fire Marshal, 
and DSHS. 

 
• The approved water system shall be installed prior to final plat approval. 

 



 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.C. Memo for SUB 2016-005     Page 6 of 9    September 6, 2016 

• The installation of the water system must be installed under the 
supervision of a WA. State Registered Engineer, and the engineer shall 
send a letter to the Benton County Fire Marshal certifying in writing that 
the system was installed in accordance to the approved design. 

 
• Water main requirements are: 

a. Hydrants are to be operable prior to building permits being issued. 
b. Minimum main size for circulating (grid or Loop systems) shall be 6”. 
c. Dead-end mains longer than 300 feet to the last hydrant shall be 8”.  

If shorter than 300 feet, 6” are permitted. 
d. Hydrant leads more than 50 feet shall be 8”.  If shorter than 50 feet, 

6” is permitted. 
e. Hydrants shall conform to current A.W.W.A. specifications.  There shall 

be one 4 ½” NST pumper port, two 2/12” NST hose port, and a 1-1/2” 
pentagon operating nut. 

f. A storz adapter for the steamer port that meets Benton County Fire 
District 2’s requirements is required for all hydrants.  Contact Captain 
Lance Howell at 588-3212 for their requirements, also see attached 
Fire Marshal Policy on Storz adapters. 

g. There shall be an auxiliary gate valve installed to permit repair and 
replacement of hydrants without disrupting water service. 

h. Hydrant shall stand plumb, and the lowest outlet shall be between 18” 
and 24” above the finished grade. 

i. Pumper port is to face the street.  
j. Hydrants are not to be obstructed, and shall be accessible to the fire 

department. 
k. Hydrants subject to vehicle damage shall be adequately protected. 
l. Hydrant locations will be determined by the Benton County Fire 

Marshal.  General spacing is 600’ as measured by a fire truck laying 
the fire hose. 

 
36. Located directly south of the Southwest portion of the proposed subdivision is an 

operating orchard.  Benton County Code Section 11.13.080(6) provides that: “All 
dwelling units and swimming pools shall have a setback of one hundred fifty 
(150) feet from any parcel located partially or wholly within the Growth 
Management Agricultural Act District (GMAAD) and from any adjacent orchard, 
hop field or vineyard (or combination thereof) of ten (10) acres or more on one 
parcel or on contiguous parcels under common ownership.”   

 
 The applicant has placed a 150-foot orchard setback on the face of the 

preliminary plat adjacent to the orchard.   
  
37. Located along the west property lines of the proposed plat is an existing creek 

and wetland.  Attached to this memo is a wetland study for the area around the 



 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.C. Memo for SUB 2016-005     Page 7 of 9    September 6, 2016 

proposed lots 9, 10, 11 and 13, that was completed as part of a preliminary plat 
application in 2007 that was not constructed.  Based on the required front yard 
setbacks and the wetland setback as shown in the report, it appears that there is 
not enough area on lots 9, 10, and 11, to construct a dwelling.  The applicants 
have stated that they think the wetland is no longer there.  However, a site visit 
by the Planning Department noted that the wetlands area was on the site.  The 
Washington State Department of Ecology recommended that if the wetland 
conditions have changed, then a new boundary determination and a new 
wetland rating report should be completed before lots 9 and 10 are allowed to 
develop.  An additional study may be required if the applicants want to move the 
wetland setback area on the above noted lots.   

 
38. The applicant has put forth they intend to build duplexes on the lots.  The site is 

currently zoned Urban Growth Area Residential and under BCC 11.13.030(d) a 
duplex is allowed use in this zoning district.  BCC 11.13.070(a) provides the 
following standards for lot where duplexes are constructed: “ 
 

“(a) Minimum parcel size. Except as otherwise set forth herein, the 
minimum parcel size that may be created in the UGAR District is seven 
thousand five hundred (7,500) square feet; provided, the Benton-Franklin 
Health District may require a larger parcel size as necessary to meet on-
site sanitary well and sewer provisions. Duplexes may only be located on 
parcels of at least fourteen thousand (14,000) square feet; provided, the 
Benton-Franklin Health District may require a larger parcel size as 
necessary to meet on-site sanitary well and sewer provisions..” 

 
 The proposed lots comply with the above noted requirements.  However of the 

final plat they should not be labeled as lots for duplexes or single family 
dwellings.    

 
39. It was noted by the Road Department that the legal on the face of the 

preliminary plat map was not correct and will need to be correct on the final plat 
map. 

 
 
DISPOSITION OF THE APPLICANT'S REQUEST:  
A proposed subdivision and dedication shall not be approved unless the 
County makes written findings that: (a) appropriate provisions are made for 
the public health, safety, and general welfare, for open spaces, drainage 
ways, streets or roads, alleys, other public ways, transit stops, potable water 
supplies, sanitary wastes, parks and recreation, playgrounds, schools and 
school grounds, and shall consider all relevant facts including sidewalks and 
other planning features that assure safe walking conditions for students who 
walk to and from school; and (b) whether the public interest will be served 



 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.C. Memo for SUB 2016-005     Page 8 of 9    September 6, 2016 

by the subdivision and dedication.  If it finds that the proposed subdivision 
and dedication make such appropriate provisions and that the public use and 
interest will be served, then the legislative body shall approve the proposed 
subdivision and dedication.  
 
If the Preliminary Plat of LA BUENA VIDA ESTATES were approved, this office would 
recommend that the following conditions be attached to such an approval. 

 
1. That all lots in the final plat meet the design standards for final plat approval as 

specified in Benton County Code 9.08 as amended, and meet all of the zoning 
requirements as specified in BCC Title No. 11, as amended. 

 
2. The location and size of all irrigation and utility easements necessary for electric 

power, telephone service, water, sewer and cable T.V. be coordinated with the 
proper utilities and/or reviewing agencies and shown on the final plat.  The 
developer will need to open the utility trenches, including road crossings, based 
on individual utility requirements and specifications.  

 
3. That all requirements necessary for storm drainage are provided, including any 

easements necessary for compliance with the Benton County Hydrology Manual. 
All natural drains are to be kept open and protected by the dedication of a 
drainage easement or the Benton County Department of Public Works must 
approve a pipe drainage plan.  The applicant provide written verification that all 
comment on the Road Department letter dated September 6, 2016 have been 
addressed prior to the final plat being submitted. 

 
4. The applicant shall provide irrigation improvements and easements as required 

by the Benton Irrigation District.  The final plat must include an approval and 
signature block for the irrigation district. 

 
5. Provisions shall be made to assure safe walking and/or waiting areas for students 

who will walk to and from school and for bus turn out areas. Written approval by 
the Koina Benton School District must be provided to the planning department 
prior to accepting final plat for processing.   

 
6. Contour lines shall be shown on the final plat or on a separate sheet at a maximum 

of 5' intervals. 
 
7. The applicants provide written verification from the Oasis Water Company that 

they are able and willing to provide water service to the development. 
 
8. That the wetland line and the 50-foot setback as noted in the wetland study, be 

shown on the final plat.  Lots 9 and 10, are to be redesigned so that there is 
adequate area to place a dwelling on the sites and meet the zoning code setback 



 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.C. Memo for SUB 2016-005     Page 9 of 9    September 6, 2016 

requirements, Benton Franklin Health Department requirements and the wetland 
setback.  If the wetland conditions have changed, the applicant can submit a 
new boundary determination and a new wetland rating report should be 
completed for lots 9 and 10. 

 
9. That the Planning Department receives written verification from the Benton 

County Fire Marshal indicating that the required fire flow and adequate fire 
protection system have been installed and are functioning as per the 
requirements of BCC.  If this is not accomplished a statement will need to be 
placed on the final plat indicating that: “No building permit shall be issued until 
the roads are constructed to at least subgrade standards." All roads must be 
constructed or bonded prior to the final plat being submitted for final plat approval.  

 
10 That the Planning Department receives written verification from the Benton 

Franklin Health District that all the requirements listed in the Benton Franklin 
Health District letter dated June 27, 2016 have been completed.  Such approval 
letter must be submitted with the final plat application.   

 
 11. Prior to setting the date for final approval, the applicant provides written 

verification from the Washington State Department of Health that the required 
improvements have been made to the Oasis Water Corporation System have 
been made to bring the system in compliance with current state standards.  Also 
the applicant must provide written verification from Washington State 
Department of Health that required improvements have been installed and 
inspected to provide water service to the proposed lots.   

 
12. That any pipelines within the areas proposed for dedication of road right of way 

be upgraded to meet the Benton County Department of Public Works standards 
for pipelines located in road right of way.  That the owners of the easement 
vacate the waterline easements located within the proposed road right of way. 

 
13. The final plat shall not label the lots as duplex lots.   
 
14. The applicant comply with the Road Department letter dated October 3, 2016 

and any other requirements to obtain the County Engineers signature on the final 
plat. 

 
15. That the preliminary plat is modified in all necessary respects so that the final 

plat will reflect the requirements of approval.  If the final plat will be in conflict 
with any of the conditions of approval as adopted by the Planning Commission as 
a result of the modifications, then the final plat must be reviewed by the 
Planning Commission at a public meeting for approval prior to sending the final 
plat to the Board of County Commission. 











24.53 50.48

31.42

152.07

5
43563 SQ FT

1.00 AC

13
4.

04

325.28

13
0.

44 6
43639 SQ FT

1.00 AC

7
50946 SQ FT

1.17 AC

365.02

367.58

14
1.

56

31.42

146.48 147.38

144.73

14
1.

56

21
3.

25

178.85

18
3.

05
18

3.
05

189.73

100.00

11
5.4

0

12
43935 SQ FT

1.01 AC 403.08

184.70

218.92 10
3.

88128.63

1
43561 SQ FT

1.00 AC

14
0.

34

265.09

13
1.

28

308.92

41.10
15.00

2
44149 SQ FT

1.01 AC

5.00
324.433

43844 SQ FT
1.01 AC

355.87

12
2.

98

348.25

12
6.

30

4
43399 SQ FT

1.00 AC

18
8.

57
103.04 226.50

24.86

124.93

13
1.

14

13
8.

28

333.09

13
6.

66

121.36

24.99

18
7.

77

8
49476 SQ FT

1.14 AC

51
.0

3

9
46710 SQ FT

1.07 AC

85
.09

29
5.9

1

21
.4

5

241.98

11
9.0

0

334.52

18
6.

32

77
.3

8
13

63585 SQ FT
1.46 AC585.01

54
.60 182.64

301.3494.40

185.33

117.11

14
61800 SQ FT

1.42 AC1157.34 13
1.

14 15
33555 SQ FT

0.77 AC

252.84

13
1.

28

258.91

10
49588 SQ FT

1.14 AC

11
78163 SQ FT

1.79 AC

13
5.

17

245.95

320.48

LEGEND

EXTG WATERLINE
EXTG UTILITY EASEMENT
PROPOSED UTILITY EASEMENT
EASEMENT TO BE VACATED
EXTG DRAIN PIPE
EXTG ELECTRICAL
WETLAND EDGE OR BUFFER
EXTG FENCE

H:
V:

SHEET

61
15

 B
ur

de
n 

Bl
vd

, S
ui

te
 E

Pa
sc

o,
 W

A 
99

30
1-

89
30

50
9/

54
7-

51
19

30
6/

69
5-

34
88

50
9/

54
7-

51
29

 fa
x

DESIGNED:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED:

SCALE:

In
te

rn
et

: w
w

w
.h

dj
dg

.c
om

C
:\A

ca
d\

LB
VE

-P
re

pl
at

_R
ev

-9
-2

2-
16

.d
w

g
   

Ba
rn

ey
, K

ev
in

 W
.  

 6
/1

/2
01

6 
3:

02
:5

0 
PM

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
P

L
A

T
 
F

O
R

:

L
A

 
B

U
E

N
A

 
V

I
D

A
 
E

S
T

A
T

E
S

A
 
S

U
B

D
I
V

I
S

I
O

N
 
L

O
C

A
T

E
D

 
I
N

 
B

E
N

T
O

N
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
W

A

KWB

BMW

KWB

1" = 80'
N/A

SEPT. 2016 UPDATE

4319-00

1

1

Scale  1" = 80'

0 40 80 160

PRELIMINARY PLAT

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

TAX LOT # 1-1296-401-2724-002

PARENT PARCEL:

Total Site Area (Gross):

Road Right of Way Dedication:

Well Tract A:

Total Net Lot Area:

Lot Count:

Average Lot Area:

Largest Lot Area:

Smallest Lot Area:

21.28 Acres

3.94 Acres

0.37 Acres

16.97 Acres

15 Lots

49,281SF

63,585 SF

33,555 SF

LAND USE TABLE

Owner/Developer:

  Dos Cabras Viejas, LLC.

  8524 W. Gage Blvd., Bldg. A-1

  Kennewick, WA 99336

  Phone: (509) 727-2241

  or (509) 727-3315

Engineer:

  HDJ Design Group P.L.L.C.

  Attn: Kevin Barney, PE

  6115 Burden Blvd., Suite E

  Pasco, WA 99301

  Phone: (509) 547-5119

Surveyor:

  HDJ Design Group P.L.L.C.

  Attn: Paul Tomkins, PLS

  6115 Burden Blvd., Suite E

  Pasco, WA 99301

  Phone: (509) 547-5119

ROADWAY CURVE DATA

#

C1

C2

116°10'33"

29°58'16"

R

105.00

310.00

L

212.90

162.16

T

168.61

82.98

C1

C2

PCM 2.3



From: Clark Posey
To: Donna Hutchinson
Subject: FW: La Buena Vida Estates
Date: Tuesday, September 13, 2016 4:13:16 PM
Attachments: 8-15-16 Fire Flow Breezin Estates.pdf

From: Ken Williams 
Sent: Tuesday, September 13, 2016 4:05 PM
To: Mike Shuttleworth <Mike.Shuttleworth@co.benton.wa.us>; Robert Blain
 <Robert.Blain@co.benton.wa.us>; Jeff Liner <Jeff.Liner@co.benton.wa.us>
Cc: Clark Posey <Clark.Posey@co.benton.wa.us>; Paul Christensen (pdchristensen@charter.net)
 <pdchristensen@charter.net>
Subject: RE: La Buena Vida Estates

Mike,

I just got back from a long weekend so this reply may not be received until after your 9-13-16
 meeting. 

After reading Mr. Christensen’s 9-9-16 email, in addition to my previously submitted comments
 regarding SUB 16-05, I do have the following comments.

1. In Mr. Christensen’s comment #5, it is stated the existing 6” water main is not adequate to
service the proposed fire hydrants.  From a fire flow point, the 6” when looped to the new
water main serving the proposed development and the pumps are resequenced, it is my
opinion the required fire flow of 500 gpm at a residual pressure of 20 psi will be obtained.
However, before approving the plat the developers, perhaps a civil engineer should
determine if tying in the existing water mains to the proposed water mains will result in
required fire flow being met.  I can certainly conduct  the needed fire flow tests so the
developer’s engineer can make this determination.

2. Regarding Mr. Christensen’s comment #7, the attached fire flow graph does show the 500
gpm requirement was not met.  But in an 8-23-16 email to Mr. Posey, I stated that during
the test a change of just 1 psi would result in the 500 gpm being surpassed, the 8-15-16 fire
flow test was accepted as meeting the county standard.  Below is the pasted 8-23-16 email.

Gentlemen,

For purposes of the submitted Preliminary Plat SUB 16-005, the Oasis Water District
 can provide the required fire flow of 500 gpm.

The attached graph shows the fire flow at Breezin Estates is 463 gpm at 20 psi. 
 Though the required flow is 500 gpm at 20 psi, the 463 gpm is acceptable.  The
 reason being is just a one psi increase in the pitot pressure would result in a flow of
 508 gpm at 20 psi.  The one psi difference could come from a misreading of the
 gauge, or an inaccurate gauge.

PCH 1.5

mailto:/O=BENTON COUNTY/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=CLARK POSEYA45
mailto:Donna.Hutchinson@co.benton.wa.us







Additionally, during the test, the flow of 463 gpm was insufficient to kick on the third
 pump, which is rated for 600 gpm.  Had the third pump kicked in, it is my opinion
 the required flow of 500 gpm would have been exceeded.

Regarding the third pump, Paul Christensen, owner of Oasis Water District, said that
 at the time of the test, the third pump would not come on until the flow was 600
 gpm.  However, Paul said steps are being taken to change the criteria from gpm to a
 pressure reading.  He is in the process of working with a pump engineer to
 determine, from Oasis point, what that psi would be.

From a fire service point, it is recommended the lowest pressure that would cause
 the third pump to operate is 30 psi.  This would provide a 10 psi safety cushion for
 the fire trucks, and at the time third pump operated, the fire flow of 500 gpm would
 need to be obtained. 

When the switch over from gpm to psi is completed, another test will have to be
 conducted.

By the way, feel free to use the attached excel worksheet for determining what the
 fire flow would be for any other water system, and if deciphering help is need give
 me a holler.

Not having Paul Christensen’s email address this email will be mailed to him.
Ken

Hopefully, this  information will arrive in time for the 9-13-16 hearing.  If I can be of further
 assistance, please let me know.
Ken

From: Mike Shuttleworth 
Sent: Friday, September 09, 2016 2:39 PM
To: Robert Blain <Robert.Blain@co.benton.wa.us>; Jeff Liner <Jeff.Liner@co.benton.wa.us>; Ken
 Williams <Ken.Williams@co.benton.wa.us>
Cc: Clark Posey <Clark.Posey@co.benton.wa.us>
Subject: FW: La Buena Vida Estates

Robert and Jeff do you have any comments on item 2 and 5 below.  Ken do you have any comment
 on the fire hydrants.  This item will be considered by the Planning Commission on September 13,
 2016.  It would be helpful to receive your comments by Monday.  Thank-you for your help

From: Clark Posey 
Sent: Friday, September 09, 2016 2:33 PM
To: Mike Shuttleworth <Mike.Shuttleworth@co.benton.wa.us>
Subject: FW: La Buena Vida Estates

mailto:Robert.Blain@co.benton.wa.us
mailto:Jeff.Liner@co.benton.wa.us
mailto:Ken.Williams@co.benton.wa.us
mailto:Clark.Posey@co.benton.wa.us
mailto:Mike.Shuttleworth@co.benton.wa.us


From: Paul Christensen [mailto:pdchristensen@charter.net] 
Sent: Friday, September 09, 2016 2:17 PM
To: Clark Posey <Clark.Posey@co.benton.wa.us>
Subject: La Buena Vida Estates

Clark

Just a few notes regarding SUB 2016-005 / EA 2016-016

I am the owner of Oasis Water Corporation which will serve this new development.

1. Regarding the preliminary plat that was submitted for review, there are several discrepancies
regarding the boundary lines.  Lot 2 of Short Plat 2724is relatively square and not the “L”
shape as shown.  Also the original Short Plat 2724 includes all of Breezie Lane to Highland
Road.

2. During the construction of the well site on lot 2, the owners, (who owned lots 1 and 2 at the
time) were to have recorded an easement for the overflow pipe that is now located within lot
2. This pipe runs within the area proposed for the new Breezie Lane, and continues straight
through the center of the proposed lot 11 of the new preliminary plat.

3. There is no water line located within the extension of Sandy Lane
4. There are no fire hydrants located at Breezie/Highland, Breezie/Thunder, or

Sandy/Lightning intersections, nor the one shown near the center of lot 12.
5. The water main within Breezie and Thunder is a 6-inch main with glued joints.  We have

had several failures of this line in the past.  Although it is serving as a connector/loop line at
this time, it will not be adequate to service the fire hydrants required for the new
development.

6. Oasis Water is approved to service 230 connections at this time.  We currently service 175
connections.  Each duplex will be considered as two connections and will need to be
individually metered.

7. I understand the Fire Marshal had concern for the fire flow.  We are adjusting the
sequencing of the pumps and will have this retested.

Should you have any further questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Paul Christensen
Oasis Water Corporation
Cell: 509-460-1202
Email: pdchristensen@charter.net

mailto:pdchristensen@charter.net
mailto:Clark.Posey@co.benton.wa.us
mailto:pdchristensen@charter.net




Benton County
Geographic Information

Systems Department

LA BUENA VIDA ESTATES PRELIMINARY PLAT
Map Created: 09-13-2016

2012 Orthophoto

Benton County does not warrant, guarantee, or accept liability for accuracy, precision or 
completeness of any information shown hereon or for any inferences made therefrom.  Any 
use made of this information is solely at the risk of the user.  Benton County makes no 
warranty, expressed or implied, and any oral or written statement by any employee of Benton 
County or agents thereof to the contrary is void and ultra vires.  The information shown herein 
is a product of the Benton County Geographic Information Systems, and is prepared for 
presentation purposes only. 

PCH 1.4



























































































































































































































WEH
Text Box
Noxious Weed Budget Assessment ~ Vic Reeves













WEH
Text Box
Jail Contract w/Cities Discussion ~ L Smith-Kelty




	CA - Facilities e.pdf
	Agenda action sheet for Fire SYstems West
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION / SUMMARY

	resolution for FireSystemsWest 2016
	RESOLUTION

	Signed PA Signed Contract (002)
	Exhibit A Quote from FSW
	Exhibit B RFP
	Exhibit C Prevailing Wage
	Exhibit D Bkgrnd Check Form

	PH - Capital Improvement Plan.pdf
	5 - CIP County Department Indroductions.pdf
	Benton County Commissioners Office
	Mission

	Benton County Corrections Department
	Mission

	Benton County District Court
	Mission

	Benton County Facilities Department
	Mission

	Benton County Fairgrounds
	Mission

	Benton County Information Technology
	Mission

	Benton County Parks Department
	Mission

	Benton County Public Works Department
	Mission


	Glossary.pdf
	K

	6 - CIP Introduction.pdf
	BC
	What are Capital Improvements?

	BC
	BC
	Paying for Capital Improvements

	BC
	Guidelines and Policies Used in Developing the CIP

	BC
	Benton County’s Biennial CIP Development Process


	8 - CIP Summary rev.pdf
	C

	Addendum.pdf
	Addendum 2

	2017-2022 CIP Resolution.pdf
	Chairman of the Board
	Member
	Constituting the Board of County


	Agenda Action- 2017-2022 Capital Improvement Plan.pdf
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION
	MOTION

	Fund Summary.pdf
	Fund Summary

	1-Capital Projects Fund.pdf
	Capital Projects Fund

	2-Park Developement Fund.pdf
	Park Development

	3-REET Fund.pdf
	REET Fund

	4-Rural Cap Fund.pdf
	Rural Capital

	5-Solid Waste Fund.pdf
	Solid Waste Fund

	6-1-10th Criminal Fund.pdf
	1-10th Criminal Justice

	7-Jail Depreciation Fund.pdf
	Jail Depreciation

	8-Road Fund.pdf
	Road Fund


	Timed - 1 JC Remodel.pdf
	Timed - JC Remodel.pdf
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION
	SUMMARY
	MOTION


	Timed - 2 Roof Change Order.pdf
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION / SUMMARY
	Timed - Roof Change Order.pdf
	resolution for Change Order No 1 for MG Wagner
	RESOLUTION

	Wagner change order


	Timed - 3 SUB 2016-005.pdf
	SUB 2016-005 Cont Hrg PKT 10-11-16.pdf
	SUB 2016-005 pc mem 10-11-16.pdf
	Benton County Planning Department


	SUB 2016-005 BOCC Ag Sheet 11-1-16.pdf
	AGENDA ITEM    
	Prepared By: Clark A. Posey
	Consent Agenda

	SUMMARY
	RECOMMENDATION

	SUB 2016-005 Exhibit List.pdf
	Sheet1


	g. Public Access Easement Near Candy Mountain

	Button19: 
	Button20: 
	Button1: 
	Button2: 
	Button3: 
	Button4: 
	Button5: 
	Button6: 
	Button7: 
	Button8: 
	Button9: 
	Button10: 
	Button11: 
	Button12: 
	Button13: 
	Button14: 
	Button15: 
	Button16: 
	Button17: 
	Button18: 
	Button21: 


